
 

The Town Of Clayton 
Regular Council Agenda 

Monday, August 3, 2015 @ 6:30 PM 
Council Chambers 

 

 

  

  

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
 
Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation 

 

2. ADJUSTMENT OF THE AGENDA 

  

 

3. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
 
(Items on the consent agenda are considered routine in nature or have been 
thoroughly discussed at previous meetings. Any member of the Council may request 
to have an item removed from the consent agenda for further discussion.)  

 a. Draft Minutes  July 20, 2015 - Closed Session 

Cover - Draft Minutes - July 20, 2015 Closed Session - Pdf 

  
 b. Appointment to Library Advisory Board 

Cover - Vacancy Library Board.pdf 

Library Board Applicant.pdf 

  
 c. Warranty & Dedication - Creekside Commons Subdivision - Asphalt FINAL 

Cover - Creekside Commons.pdf 

Creekside Commons Warranty and Dedication.pdf 

  
 d. Special Event 2015-14 - Squealin' on the Square 

Cover - 2015-14- Squealin' on the Square.pdf 

2015-14 Squealin on the Square - Action Item Report.pdf 

  
 e. Amend - Resolutions 2015-27 & 2015-33; Cert. of Sufficiency and Public 

Notice - 15-08-06-ANX - Raven's Ridge 8C 

Cover - Amendments 15-08-06-ANX.pdf 

Amend Resolution 2015-27.docx 

Amend Resolution 2015-33.pdf 

Amend Cert of Sufficency Ravens Ridge.pdf 

Page 1 of 178



Revised PublicNotice 15-08-06-ANX RWAC Ravens Ridge 8C2 House 
Tract.docx 

 
 
POTENTIAL ACTION:                 Approval of Consent Agenda as Presented 

 

 

4. INTRODUCTIONS AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 

  

 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS   

   
 a. Public Hearing - 15-18-01-RZ -Young Family Tract Rezoning 

Cover - 15-18-01-RZ - Young Family.pdf 

Public Notice - 15-18-01-RZ.pdf 

Staff Report- 15-18-01-RZ - Young Family Tract .pdf 

Motion Form 15-08-01-RZ.docx 

Ordinance 15-18-01-RZ.pdf 

 
 
POTENTIAL ACTION:                 Approval/Disapproval 

  
 b. Public Hearing - 15-19-01-RZ - Wiggins Tract Rezoing 

Cover - 15-19-01-RZ - Wiggins.pdf 

Public Notice -15-19-01-RZ.pdf 

Staff Report- 15-19-01-RZ - Wiggins Tract.pdf 

Motion Form - 15-19-01-RZ.docx 

Ordinance - 15-19-01-RZ.pdf 

 
 
POTENTIAL ACTION:                 Approval/Disapproval 

  
 c. Public Hearing - PSD 2014-97 - Magnolia Pointe Subdivision - Preliminary 

Plat  

Cover - PSD 2014-97.pdf 

Public Notice - PSD 2014-97.pdf 

Staff Report - Magnolia Pointe PSD2014-97.pdf 

Motion Form - PSD 2014-97.docx 

 
 
POTENTIAL ACTION:                 Approval/Disapproval 

  
 d. Public Hearing - Voluntary Annexation - 15-08-06-ANX - Riverwood Athletic 

Club - Raven's Ridge 8C 

Cover - 15-08-06-ANX.pdf 

Page 2 of 178



Revised PublicNotice - 15-08-06-ANX RWAC Ravens Ridge 8C.docx 

Staff Report - 15-08-06-ANX.pdf 

Ordinance - 15-08-06-ANX.pdf 

 
 
POTENTIAL ACTION:                 Approval/Disapproval 

 

 

6. OLD BUSINESS 

   
 a. Amend - Resolution 2015-36 to Set Public Hearing - 14-111-01-ANX - 

Parkview 

Cover  - Amend Resolution 2015-36.pdf 

Amend Resolution 2015-36.docx 

 
 
POTENTIAL ACTION:                 Set Public Hearing for August 17, 2015 

  
 b. Sam's Branch Sewer Agreements - Creech and Parkview 

Cover - Sam's Branch Agreements.pdf 

Sam's Branch Sewer Outfall Infrastructure Agreement Creech Ver 3.0.doc 

Sam's Branch Sewer Outfall Infrastructure Agreement Parkview Ver 
3.0.doc 

 
 
POTENTIAL ACTION:                 Approval/Disapproval 

 

 

7. NEW BUSINESS 

  

 

8. STAFF REPORTS 

   
 a. Town Manager 

  
 b. Town Attorney 

  
 c. Town Clerk 

  
 d. Other Staff 

 

 

9. OTHER BUSINESS 

   

Page 3 of 178



 a. Informal Discussion & Public Comment 

  
 b. Council Comments 

 

 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

  

 

11.  

  

 

Page 4 of 178



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 
 
AGENDA LOCATION:  
Consent 

Meeting Date:  
August 3, 2015 

 
ITEM TITLE: 
Draft Minutes - July 20, 2015 CLOSED Session 
 
DESCRIPTION: 
Draft minutes from the July 20, 2015 Closed Session are presented for approval.  
Minutes will be delivered under separate cover. 
 
POTENTIAL ACTION: 
 
 
DEPARTMENT: 
Administration 

PRESENTER: 
Kimberly Moffett 

 
ITEM HISTORY: 
NONE 
 
Date: 
 

 Action Taken: 
 

 
Information Provided: 
 
 
Date: 
 

 Action Taken: 
 

 
Information Provided: 
 

Page 5 of 178



Meeting Date:

TOWN OF CLAYTON
TOWN COUNCIL

AGENDA COVER SHEET

AGENDA LOCATION:
Consent August 3, 2015

ITEM TITLE:
Appointment to Library Advisory Board

DESCRIPTION:
Ms. Starnes recommends appointment of Linda Brogdon to filla vacancy on the board
with an unexpired term of 12/31/2016.

POTENTIAL ACTION:
Approval/Disapproval

DEPARTMENT: PRESENTER:
Library

ITEM HISTORY:

Date: Action Taken:
July 20, 2015 Placed on August 3, 2015 Consent Agenda

Information Provided:
Application

Date: Action Taken:

Information Provided:

Page 6 of 178



dnrklnk.

Meet Ex ggon
£725 \~k1AA\e,u4s’c\rJ0»\\(‘);rx~x\k-uvxNC 97.”?

\\r\&>v"ac3d:m_€9fk)-M0u\-00

L‘/cLro\w\a(‘)n\\Axw'-2»Two.“ C6c.\€-cw»g>\o~+cd\
; gin — ”?cLV\no\0:>\J'\6‘§

Pagz 1

The Town of Clayton welcomes and appreciatesyour interest in serving the Town. This
applicationis designed to gather informationto evaluate your qualifications. Candidatesmay be
interviewedprior to appointment.

If requesting consideration for more than one, please submita separate application for each board.

CHOOSEONE:

Planning & Zoning Board Board of Adjustment

Downtown Development Assoc. 3/éaytonLibrary Board

Recreation Advisory Committee Fire Dept. Advisory Board

Public Arts Advisory Board

PLEASE NOTE: In accordancewith North Carolina law, this application is a public record and
will be disclosedupon request and without notice. If there is any information you do not want
released to the public, please do not include it.

Please type or use

Name: -?pvo

Mailing Address: Z’!

Physical HOME Address 6 «me,

Phone Number (HOME): °l\‘\ 66 25‘?>‘-\\‘3 (WORK) ‘WK (930 étotto

FAX Number: Mobile Number: q\al (.2270 QOWO

Email Address: ‘V1

*FemaIe$*Male[| *Race \N\/C<‘V€»

Employer:

Occupation

‘This information is voluntary and is requested for the sole purpose of assuring that a cross section of the community

is appointed;NC GS 143-157.1.

Page 7 of 178



Jymqns

0
WW

-.3
‘

\.

1_)f\\0I'\

V7"/1
‘M?vvno

;1\\;pnp0.>éwegwraq
64%‘_W\a3’?aammuaoa

Z|0!|J|.lO0

vvanw’>>%°’->~.V?~r>\\
-

9r
‘

_w’7‘»<><>v(.7-_r.'¢.:7\,\\1\\,)§’J‘0maum
‘¢/7\)“4 \'\.\»\ur\w\MrJ77

V‘
§4r?\AI'W613),vrnI«/\\\ar\°~ $7.!

\WWW“‘9’“°V‘W°‘l
—

'°°“!w-e-.‘:=;:M*=n*sa*:,q,,55"Jn29 &i“iE¢‘¢%2?;.»3J"£~’k&2‘A£3“$’»‘f‘
Ml‘v)J\90J&.Tu-olsdgma?rvvvnyvuwa.\=od\m_.\m¢av‘enf)wa\_na~10

No.‘.c\.|\
tr:

.«

V \W\w\/W3V1‘\\'r'.r&’)vmm-_r
-

WWO?)
9.Wm‘bw\\rcm~«:r9\2@

§<7\A0\??-\\

rz<1\v-rowVJMO<\;,WJ\.\(\’.>249%?

94\—\\jw9’a ),_\

AC‘! :’!I!u‘pJea,”-‘V-tllf«fvlo mu
_

u0J 1un1llW°-9nfmyd

Km“j
'

{faza?vd

oh

(3‘°'°U“°W’P}°uM°1@11°JJ°W>I)WW9Kq10(szszzON‘Howls‘ensXOEI0.1‘U°W"IC)J0
umol){yewKq‘(zaaxzgpuoosg191231:11)uosmdug31913umolsq:01ugp:;u.In1sq01aresuop'e:)

1_'[ddV
'.Ie9ABugmonog

otp,goI1sn.‘3nV[p,un9A;13'euyeuraxmmuop1e31_'[dd'e syqz‘9A.I:>s01paguyoddeKnzgxgugJ,ou31
'JU911IJI.I[OddB01Jopdpsmapuoluysq?ewsenapgpueg'

'sJ,u:;unu§odd'eSupfeurugpaxapgsuoooqmmuop'e:)§{dd'esq;U;uo;1'euI.Io}uI

'p.Io:>a1a?qnd1:S;uopeogddvs;q_L

'S1I19I1II{3‘E11BI0SOIIIIISOJ1011OpOSBOICI

eqpqlemzeu?gs

o_|_u1o.ngogngo/saatngtuulog/spmog

'8.l.N3'lV.L1V|O3d8ANVONV

A.I.ll\l.l.OV"O13‘S8010OIMO‘MINOWWOO3|-LLO.|.SOIAUSSsnomauaONV.I.N3H¥|l'IO.L8l133V31¢|

:uge|dxa‘SGA;|SBAJOp.Ieoq

p8}S9l'Ib3Jaq;U0Jaqwaw9SBOM980].pauseJ.!1S8J8}U!:|.OB9‘.|Bd!O?U8HOKO0

'pa;eogpugno?aangwwoo/p.neoqema/uas0;qsgmno?KqmpuesuoneogggenbJDOKaugnno

new.:eugM_|_new;.
1adedsMa
N

A;a1gsqaMyqooqaoeggaengwwoo.uop.1eoqsgq;moqemopugno?pgpMO|-|

'3ONDsag:r13D0NMsagzszgmna1e.nod.no9(guomagoaq;u;an”no?oa
zuomegougaouapgs:->4;oq16ua‘|

'sp.IeoqIbosyxpenounoo;sou1uodgqs.
IaqLuau1 Jo;pa.1gnbe.Isg(uog1ogpsgJn_f|eg.1o;g.ua;enxa)pigJ0sum”uMoJ_aqqugtmmKouapgsau

913%
)4,g\0'1.

J‘.‘i»“’\’.)‘f°”V”‘3)——\V%V£L001
—.$v?.,Tg_\\02

pmo‘>.v\§r~ov»+

WW

we

}::\/noex
“Q3950arm

xnnro‘kwvmnwpvoo
‘

f°T"‘79J“

0’__)\)\C1—}9V‘V\°'§

e»a>mF*d.a9‘Pm<2?\W%97‘

we9’aI~
\ow*. 'ou,~p~mx%~<2<¥ «oM01

Page 8 of 178



Meeting Date:AGENDA LOCATION:
Consent

ITEM TITLE:

TOWN OF CLAYTON
TOWN COUNCIL

AGENDA COVER SHEET

August 3, 2015

Warranty and Dedication Acceptance

DESCRIPTION:
Creekside Commons Subdivision - Asphalt FINAL

POTENTIAL ACTION:

DEPARTMENT:
Planning + Zoning

ITEM HISTORY:

Date:
July 20, 2015

Information Provided:
Inspector Memo

Date:

Information Provided:

PRESENTER:
Chris Rowland

Action Taken:
Placed on August 3, 2015 Consent Agenda

Action Taken:

Page 9 of 178



TOWN OF CLAYTON
OPERATION CENTER

Page 10 of 178



TOWN OF CLAYTON
TOWN COUNCIL

AGENDA COVER SHEET

AGENDA LOCATION:
Consent August 3, 2015

ITEM TITLE:
Special Event 2015-14 - Squea|in' on the Square

DESCRIPTION:
This event will be held October 9 - 10, 2015

POTENTIAL ACTION:

DEPARTMENT: PRESENTER:
Planning + Zoning Stephanie Ross - Downtown

Development Coordinator

ITEM HISTORY:

Date: Action Taken:
July 20, 2015 Placed on August 3, 2015 Consent Agenda

Information Provided:
Special Event Report

Date: Action Taken:

Information Provided:

Page 11 of 178



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Planning Staff Contact:  Bruce Naegelen: 919-280-1278 

 
EVENT INFORMATION:  
 
Event Name: Squealin’ on the Square File Number:   2015-14 

Event Description:  Fifth Annual BBQ cooking contest.  In conjunction with The Shindig 

  

Event Date(s): 10/9-10/2015 Event Time(s): 
8 pm 10-9-2015 to  
7 pm on 10-10-2015  

Event Location:   Town Square 

Event Coordinator: Polly Mudd Contact Number: 919-553-6352 

Contact Email: polly@claytonchamber.com 

Attendees (Per Day): 1500  
 
 

TOWN SERVICES REQUESTED: 
 

Department / 
Division 

Requested Services Date/Time Primary 
Contact 

Contact 
Phone # 

Public Works 

20 Trash Roll-Out Carts  
10 Recycled Roll-Out Carts – Town 
Square  

Deliver: 
10/9/15         
Pickup: 
10/10/15 Steve Blasko 359-1287 

Public Works 
Barricades/Cones on Fayetteville @ Main 
& Second  & Town Square Parking Lot      

Deliver: 
10/9/15     
Pickup: 
10/10/15 Steve Blasko 359-1287 

DDC 
Road Closure - Fayetteville St. from Main 
St. to Second St.  & Parking Lot 

8:00 pm 
10/9/15 to 
7:00 pm 
10/10/15 Stephanie Ross 359-9349 

Electric Use Power Source at Town Square 8:00 PM 
10/9/15 to 
7:00 PM 
10/10/15 

Dale Medlin 359-1292 

 
 

STAFF USE: 
 

SEC 
Approval 

  Approved 
Date:  07/01/2015   No Council Action needed    Denied 

    
Council Presentation        Date:  07/20/2015   Approved      Denied 

Town of Clayton 
Planning Department 

111 E. Second Street, Clayton, NC 27520 
P.O. Box 879, Clayton, NC 27528 

Phone:  919-553-5002 
Fax:  919-553-1720 

SPECIAL EVENT ACTION ITEM REPORT 

Page 12 of 178

mailto:polly@claytonchamber.com


Action Consent Agenda    Date:  Date:   
    
Pending 
Actions 

  DOT Road Closure Approval 

  Issue Permit    Date:   
  ABC Permit Submittal 
  Other 

(SEC – Special Event Committee)  

Page 13 of 178



Meeting Date:

TOWN OF CLAYTON
TOWN COUNCIL

AGENDA COVER SHEET

AGENDA LOCATION:
Consent August 3, 2015

ITEM TITLE:
Amend - Resolutions 2015-27 & 2015-33, Cert. of Sufficiency and Public Notice 15-08-
06-ANX - Raven's Ridge 8C

DESCRIPTION:
Due to a clerical error, these items need to be amended to reflect this item is a
Contiguous Annexation.

POTENTIAL ACTION:

DEPARTMENT: PRESENTER:
Planning + Zoning David DeYoung

ITEM HISTORY:

Date: Action Taken:
June 15, 2015 Set Public Hearing for July 20, 2015

Information Provided:
Certificate of Sufficiency / Staff Report / Application / Map

Date: Action Taken:
July 20, 2015 Tabled Public Hearing for August 3, 2015

Information Provided:
Public Notice / Staff Report / Application / Map / Ordinance

Page 14 of 178



Resolution #2015-27
AMENDED

ANNEXATION PETITION 15-08-06-ANX
RWAC-Raven’s Ridge 8C-2
Parcel 16I03028G
Owner:  FSC IV, LLC
Contiguous; 8.20 acres

TOWN OF CLAYTON
RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE CLERK TO INVESTIGATE

A PETITION RECEIVED UNDER G.S. 160A-31

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of an area described in said 
petition was received on May 26, 2015 by the Town of Clayton; and

WHEREAS, G.S. 160A-58.2 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall 
be investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation 
proceedings may take place; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Clayton deems it advisable to 
proceed in response to this request for annexation:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of 
Clayton that:

The Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the 
above-described petition and to certify as soon as possible to the Town 
Council the results of her investigation.

Duly adopted this 3rd day of August, 2015, while in regular session.

____________________________________
Jody L. McLeod, 

Mayor

ATTEST:

___________________________________
Kimberly A. Moffett, CMC
Town Clerk

Page 15 of 178



ANNEXATION PETITION 15-08-06-ANX 
RWAC-Raven’s Ridge 8C-2 
Parcel 16I03028G 
Owner:  FSC IV, LLC 
Contiguous; 8.20 acres 

TOWN OF CLAYTON 
RESOLUTION FIXING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON QUESTION 

OF ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO G. S.160A-31 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the non-contiguous area 
described herein has been received; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has by resolution directed the Town Clerk to 
investigate the sufficiency of the petition; and 

WHEREAS, certification by the Town Clerk as to the sufficiency of the petition 
has been made; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Town Council of the Town of 
Clayton, North Carolina that: 

Section 1.  A public hearing on the question of annexation of the non-contiguous 
area described herein will be held at Town Hall at 6:30 PM on Monday, July 20, 
2015. 

Section 2.  The area proposed for annexation is described as the following:  
Legal Description for FSC IV, LLC Property:  Lying and being in Wilders 
Township, Johnston County, North Carolina and being more particularly 
described as follows: 

Beginning at an existing iron pipe on the bank of the Neuse River, said iron pipe 
being a common property corner between Ravens Ridge Phase 8A, plat book 80 
pages 394 and 395, and the now-or-formerly Mavis C. House property, deed 
book 705 page 629, and being the place and point of beginning; 
Thence leaving the Neuse River with the southern Ravens Ridge 8A property line 
S 85 degrees 02 minutes 08 seconds E 356.46 feet to a point; Thence leaving the 
Ravens Ridge 8A property line S 85 degrees 02 minutes 08 seconds E 405.94 
feet to a point; Thence S 34 degrees 02 minutes 08 seconds E 323.95 feet to a 
point; Thence S 81 degrees 47 minutes 05 seconds W 40.83 feet to a point; 
Thence S 52 degrees14 minutes 32 seconds W 80.12 feet to a point; Thence N 06 
degrees 00 minutes 41 seconds W 40.88 feet to a point; Thence S 88 degrees 59 
minutes 55 seconds W 46.72 feet to a point; Thence S 24 degrees 05 minutes 06 
seconds W 51.06 feet to a point; Thence S 62 degrees 50 minutes 25 seconds W 
43.51 feet to a point; Thence N 34 degrees 14 minutes 24 seconds W 49.91 feet 

Resolution #2015-33
AMENDED

Page 16 of 178

kmoffett
Highlight



to a point; Thence N 72 degrees 04 minutes 07 seconds W 33.13 feet to a point; 
Thence S 04 degrees 35 minutes 09 seconds E 93.32 feet to a point; Thence S 74 
degrees 27 minutes 59 seconds W 64.57 feet to a point; Thence S 02 degrees 05 
minutes 39 seconds E 39.07 feet to a point; Thence N 86 degrees 51 minutes 53 
seconds W 157.36 feet to a point; Thence N 60 degrees 44 minutes 52 seconds 
W 114.98 feet to a point; Thence S 84 degrees 20 minutes 40 seconds W 91.31 
feet to a point; Thence N 35 degrees 27 minutes 43 seconds W 36.47 feet to a 
point; Thence N 76 degrees 01 minutes 49 seconds W 42.54 feet to a point; 
Thence S 78 degrees 44 minutes 39 seconds W 58.58 feet to a point; Thence S 
37 degrees 08 minutes 33 seconds W 53.70 feet to a point; Thence S 55 degrees 
57 minutes 54 seconds W 45.62 feet to a point; Thence S 71 degrees 06 minutes 
09 seconds W 39.42 feet to a point; Thence S 67 degrees 08 minutes 24 seconds 
W 55.35 feet to a point on the Neuse River; Thence with the Neuse River N 03 
degrees 54 minutes 53 seconds E 188.56 feet to a point; Thence N 03 degrees 
13 minutes 38 seconds E 95.87 feet to a point; Thence N 02 degrees 08 minutes 
13 seconds W 112.48 feet to a point; Thence N 00 degrees 24 minutes 57 
seconds W 135.91 feet to the place and point of beginning and containing 8.20 
acres more or less. 

Section 3.  Notice of the public hearing shall be published once in the Clayton 
News-Star, a newspaper having general circulation in the Town of Clayton, at 
least ten days prior to the date of the public hearing. 

Duly adopted this 3rd day of August 2015 while in regular session. 

_______________________________________ 
ATTEST: Jody L. McLeod,  

Mayor 

__________________________________ 
Kimberly A. Moffett, CMC  
Town Clerk 

Page 17 of 178



ANNEXATION PETITION 15-08-06 ANX 
RIVERWOOD ATHLETIC CLUB – RAVENS RIDGE 8C-2 
Contiguous 8.20 +/- Acres 

CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY 

To the Town Council of the Town of Clayton, North Carolina: 

I, Kimberly A. Moffett, Town Clerk, do hereby certify that I have 
investigated the petition attached hereto and have found as a fact that 
said petition is signed by all owners of real property lying in the area 
described therein, in accordance with G.S. 160A-31. 

In witness whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal 
of the Town of Clayton, this 3rd day of August, 2015. 

___________________________________ 
Kimberly A. Moffett, CMC 

Town Clerk 

Page 18 of 178

kmoffett
Highlight

kmoffett
Highlight

kmoffett
Highlight



PUBLIC NOTICE

The Clayton Town Council has called a public hearing at 6:30 PM on Monday, 
August 3, 2015, at Town Hall, 111 East Second Street, on the question of 
annexing the following described contiguous area, requested by annexation 
petition 15-08-06-ANX  filed pursuant to G.S. 160A-31

The area proposed for annexation is described as the following:  Legal 
Description for FSC IV, LLC Property:  Lying and being in Wilders Township, 
Johnston County, North Carolina and being more particularly described as 
follows:

Beginning at an existing iron pipe on the bank of the Neuse River, said iron pipe 
being a common property corner between Ravens Ridge Phase 8A, plat book 80 
pages 394 and 395, and the now-or-formerly Mavis C. House property, deed 
book 705 page 629, and being the place and point of beginning;
Thence leaving the Neuse River with the southern Ravens Ridge 8A property line 
S 85 degrees 02 minutes 08 seconds E 356.46 feet to a point; Thence leaving the 
Ravens Ridge 8A property line S 85 degrees 02 minutes 08 seconds E 405.94 
feet to a point; Thence S 34 degrees 02 minutes 08 seconds E 323.95 feet to a 
point; Thence S 81 degrees 47 minutes 05 seconds W 40.83 feet to a point; 
Thence S 52 degrees14 minutes 32 seconds W 80.12 feet to a point; Thence N 06 
degrees 00 minutes 41 seconds W 40.88 feet to a point; Thence S 88 degrees 59 
minutes 55 seconds W 46.72 feet to a point; Thence S 24 degrees 05 minutes 06 
seconds W 51.06 feet to a point; Thence S 62 degrees 50 minutes 25 seconds W 
43.51 feet to a point; Thence N 34 degrees 14 minutes 24 seconds W 49.91 feet 
to a point; Thence N 72 degrees 04 minutes 07 seconds W 33.13 feet to a point; 
Thence S 04 degrees 35 minutes 09 seconds E 93.32 feet to a point; Thence S 74 
degrees 27 minutes 59 seconds W 64.57 feet to a point; Thence S 02 degrees 05 
minutes 39 seconds E 39.07 feet to a point; Thence N 86 degrees 51 minutes 53 
seconds W 157.36 feet to a point; Thence N 60 degrees 44 minutes 52 seconds 
W 114.98 feet to a point; Thence S 84 degrees 20 minutes 40 seconds W 91.31 
feet to a point; Thence N 35 degrees 27 minutes 43 seconds W 36.47 feet to a 
point; Thence N 76 degrees 01 minutes 49 seconds W 42.54 feet to a point; 
Thence S 78 degrees 44 minutes 39 seconds W 58.58 feet to a point; Thence S 
37 degrees 08 minutes 33 seconds W 53.70 feet to a point; Thence S 55 degrees 
57 minutes 54 seconds W 45.62 feet to a point; Thence S 71 degrees 06 minutes 
09 seconds W 39.42 feet to a point; Thence S 67 degrees 08 minutes 24 seconds 
W 55.35 feet to a point on the Neuse River; Thence with the Neuse River N 03 
degrees 54 minutes 53 seconds E 188.56 feet to a point; Thence N 03 degrees 
13 minutes 38 seconds E 95.87 feet to a point; Thence N 02 degrees 08 minutes 
13 seconds W 112.48 feet to a point; Thence N 00 degrees 24 minutes 57 
seconds W 135.91 feet to the place and point of beginning and containing 8.20 
acres more or less.

Page 19 of 178



This is an open meeting and the public is invited to attend.

Kimberly A. Moffett, CMC
Town Clerk
Town of Clayton
919-553-5002 ext. 5004
________________________________
Clayton News-Star

Please advertise on the following date:

July 22, 2015

Affidavit of publication required.
 

Page 20 of 178



Page 21 of 178



PUBLIC NOTICE

In accordance with NC GS 160A-384, the
Clayton Town Council will hold a public
hearing on August 3, 2015, at 6:30 PM at
Town Hall, 111 East Second Street, to
consider rezoning request for the Young
Family Tract, for only that portion of
parcel number 167700-47-9545 north of
Gordon Road. This land is within the
Town of Clayton Extraterritorial Plan-
ning Jurisdiction (ETJ).  The requested
change is from Residential-Estate (R-E)
to Light Industrial (I-1).
     The Clayton Town Council reserves
the right to approve the request as pre-
sented or any portion of the request
without necessity of withdrawal or modi-
fication of the application or additional
public hearing on the matter.  Likewise,
the Town Council may designate appro-
val to the district requested or another
district or districts without modification
of the request or additional public hear-
ing.
     Persons wishing to submit a petition
of protest intended to invoke the rules in
N.C. General Statute 160A-385 must sub-
mit said petition on forms provided by
the Town Clerk not later than 5:00 PM
on Wednesday, July 29, 2015.
     This is an open meeting and the pub-
lic is invited to attend.

Jay McLeod, Planner 919-359-9335

N&O: July 23, 30, 2015

Page 22 of 178



 
 
 
 

 
Planning Board  

June 22, 2015 

STAFF REPORT 

 

Application Number: 15-18-01-RZ 
Project Name: Young Family Tract Rezoning 

 
 
NC PIN / Tag #: 167700-47-9545 / 05I05021A 
Town Limits/ETJ: ETJ 
Overlay: Small Area Plan (Future Land Use) / Scenic Highway Interchange (Scenic Highway Overlay) / 

Johnston County Research & Training Zone (Johnston County Economic Training Zone) 
Applicant:  Norwood Thompson  
Owner: Young Family Irrevocable Trust c/o Jenny Kelling (Trustee) 
Location: The property is located on Gordon Rd, near US Hwy 70 Business (see map). 
 
Public Noticing:  
• Neighborhood meeting May 12, 2015 
• Sign posted June 09, 2015 
• Letters mailed prior to July 22, 2015 
• Newspaper ad posted prior to July 22, 2015 
 
REQUEST:   Rezoning from Residential-Estate (R-E) to Light Industrial (I-1).  
 

Town of Clayton 
Planning Department 

111 E. Second Street, Clayton, NC 27520 
P.O. Box 879, Clayton, NC 27528 

Phone:  919-553-1545 
Fax:  919-553-1720 

Page 1 of 5 
 

Page 23 of 178



SITE DATA: 
Acreage: 69.58 acres  
Existing Use: Agriculture 
 
 
ADJACENT ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 
Direction Zoning Existing Use 

North Light Industrial (I-1) Industrial, warehousing, businesses 
South Residential-Estate (R-E), County Agricultural 

Residential (AR) 
Rural residential, agricultural 

East Residential-Estate (R-E) Agricultural 
West Light Industrial (I-1), Residential-Estate (R-E), 

Highway Business (B-3) 
Industrial, businesses, vacant 

 
   
 
STAFF ANALYSIS AND COMMENTARY: 
 
Overview 
The applicant is requesting to rezone 69± acres from Residential-Estate to Light Industrial. This piece of land is 
currently agricultural and primarily fronts along Gordon Rd, although some frontage also occurs along Wise Rd, 
US Hwy 70 Business, and North Tech Drive, just north of the intersection of Hwy 70 Business and Hwy 70 Bypass. 
The land is on the outside border of the Town’s Extraterritorial Planning Jurisdiction (ETJ).  
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Land Uses 
The site is located on the outside boundary of the industrial and technology-oriented uses that currently occupy 
the industrially-zoned land to the north. It is on the developing fringe of Clayton’s ETJ.  
 
A small residential subdivision (Edinburgh) lies southeast of the property on the southern side of Gordon Rd. 
This subdivision’s sole access in and out is by Gordon Rd. The neighborhood does have a stub-out street heading 
east, but the adjacent property is not yet developed, and even when it is the second connection will still be to 
Gordon Rd. 
 
Other uses surrounding the subject property are primarily agricultural or industrial/business. 
 
Access/Streets:   
Access to the bulk of the property is primarily from Gordon Rd and it is also possible to make a second 
connection from the north off of North Tech Dr. There is no way for a direct connection from the property to US 
Hwy 70 Business, nor is it likely that it would be permitted by NCDOT. The proximity to the US Hwy 70 Business 
and Hwy 70 Bypass interchange is supportive of an industrial-type use that might involve utilization of freight 
shipping corridors. 
 
The two smaller sub-tracts of the Young Family property have access to US Hwy 70 Business, Gordon Rd, and 
Wise Rd. 

 
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

Page 24 of 178



Staff Report 
15-18-01-RZ Young Family Tract 

Consistency with the Strategic Growth Plan 
The 2008 Strategic Growth Plan designates this area as a “Small Area Plan” adjacent to Industrial Future Land 
Use on the north, and the highway interchange on the southwest. This rezoning is consistent with the intent of 
the Future Land Use for these and surrounding lands, as controlled by the Scenic Highway Overlay discussed 
below. 
 
Consistency with Overlays 
The Young Family Tract overlaps partially with the Scenic Highway Overlay (SHO). This regulates the uses within 
a certain distance of intersections and interchanges through the Scenic Highway Overlay interchange 
development criteria (§155.204(C)(8)). Only one type of industrial use is allowed within the SHO area – Research 
and Development (§155.306(H)) – and it is allowed at interchanges as a Conditional Use. Research and 
Development includes research and development of new products, offices and other facilities to support these 
activities, prototype production facilities, pilot plants, and scientifically-oriented production facilities. Mixed use 
developments are encouraged within the SHO, and specific design guidelines are taken into account during the 
site planning process. 
 

 

Town of Clayton Overlay District Zoning Map (excerpted) 

Subject parcel 
US Hwy 70 Bypass 

Page 3 of 5 
 

Page 25 of 178



Staff Report 
15-18-01-RZ Young Family Tract 

 
 
This rezoning is likely in anticipation of subsequent inclusion of the subject property into the Johnston County 
Research and Training Zone (aka Economic Training Zone). The Johnston County Research and Training Zone 
(RTZ) is a specialized taxing district which houses the biotech, chemical, and pharmaceutical manufacturing 
companies along the US Hwy 70 Business corridor such as Grifols, Novo Nordisk, etc. If this should occur, Board 
of County Commissioners and Town Council permission is required prior to any inclusion into the RTZ. Properties 
included in the RTZ are not allowed to be annexed by the Town and have their property taxes fixed at a rate set 
when they are accepted into the RTZ. 
 

 
 
 
 
CONSIDERATIONS:  
 

• Rezonings are decided by the Town Council. The Planning Board shall make a recommendation to the 
Town Council.  

• When adopting or rejecting the rezoning, the Town Council shall approve a statement describing 
whether its action is consistent with adopted plans and/or policies of the Town and explaining why the 
Council considers the action taken to be reasonable and in the public interest. 

Page 4 of 5 
 

Page 26 of 178



Staff Report 
15-18-01-RZ Young Family Tract 

• The Town may wish for a subdivision of this oddly shaped parcel prior to a rezoning. Currently, this 
particular parcel is divided into three different sub-tracts, separated by Gordon Rd and Wise Rd. It would 
seem more appropriate to rezone the main body of the Young Family Tract parcel to I-1, but for the 
other two sub-tracts to assume some other type of zoning which might be more suitable to their 
particular locations. 

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff is recommending approval of the rezoning of the subject parcel. 
 

 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1) Aerial Map 
2) Existing and Proposed Zoning Map 
3) Proposed Land Use Map 
4) Application 
5) Neighborhood Meeting Materials 

 

Page 5 of 5 
 

Page 27 of 178



GORDON RD  

US 70 BUS HWY W

US 70 HWY W WISE RD  

PONY FARM RD  

POWHATAN RD  

TE
CH

 PA
RK

 LN
  

Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal
responsibility for the information represented here.

15-18-01-RZ Young Family Tract Rezoning
Rezoning from R-E to I-1

Produced by: TOC Planning

Applicant: Norwood Thompson
Property Owner: Young Family Irrevocable Trust
Parcel ID Number: 167700-47-9545
Tag #: 05I05021A

03/14/2015

GORDON RD  

US 70 BUS HWY W

POWHATAN RD  

TE
CH

 PA
RK

 LN
  

0 0.20.1 Miles

Vicinity Map

Aerial Map

0 3,0001,500
Feet

 ±

Subject parcel

P
age 28 of 178



R-E

I-1

I-2

B-2

B-3

O-I

US 70 BUS HWY W

GORDON RD  

WISE RD  

POWHATAN RD  

US 70 HWY W

Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal
responsibility for the information represented here.

15-18-01-RZ Young Family Tract Rezoning
Rezoning from R-E to I-1

Produced by: TOC Planning

Applicant: Norwood Thompson
Property Owner: Young Family Irrevocable Trust
Parcel ID Number: 167700-47-9545
Tag #: 05I05021A

06/15/2015

GORDON RD  

US 70 BUS HWY W

POWHATAN RD  

0 0.20.1 Miles

I-1
R-E

I-2

I-1

B-2

B-3

O-I

US 70 BUS HWY W

GORDON RD  
WISE RD  

POWHATAN RD  

±

Vicinity Map

Proposed Zoning MapCurrent Zoning Map

0 1,800900 Feet
0 1,800900 Feet

 

Legend
subject parcel R-E

R-10
R-8
R-6
PD-R
O-R
B-1

B-2
B-3
PD-C
I-1
I-2
O-I
PD-MUP

age 29 of 178



Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal
responsibility for the information represented here.

15-18-01-RZ Young Family Tract Rezoning
Rezoning from R-E to I-1

Produced by: TOC Planning

06/15/2015

GORDON RD  

US 70 BUS HWY W

POWHATAN RD  

0 0.20.1 Miles

INDUSTRIAL

SMALL AREA PLAN
RESIDENTIAL-MEDIUM

GORDON RD  

US 70 BUS HWY W

US 70 HWY W WISE RD  

PONY FARM RD  

POWHATAN RD  

PEELE RD  

HARVEST MILL LN  

±

Vicinity Map

Proposed Land Use Map (Source: 2008 Strategic Growth Plan)

0 1,900950
Feet

Legend
Subject Parcel

PROPOSED LAND USE
CBD
COMMERCIAL
INDUSTRIAL
MULTI-FAMILY
NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL
OFFICE INSTITUTIONAL
OPEN SPACE CONSERVATION
PUBLIC
RESIDENTIAL-INFILL
RESIDENTIAL-LIGHT
RESIDENTIAL-MEDIUM
SMALL AREA PLAN

Applicant: Norwood Thompson
Property Owner: Young Family Irrevocable Trust
Parcel ID Number: 167700-47-9545
Tag #: 05I05021A

 

P
age 30 of 178



Page 31 of 178



Page 32 of 178



Page 33 of 178



Page 34 of 178



Page 35 of 178



Page 36 of 178



Page 37 of 178



Page 38 of 178



Page 39 of 178



Page 40 of 178



Page 41 of 178



 

PPAB 2574608v1 

TOWN OF CLAYTON 

ZONING AMENDMENT 

CONSISTENCY AND REASONABLENESS STATEMENT 

15-18-01-RZ, Young Family Tract rezoning 

 

The Town Council of the Town of Clayton hereby states: 

  
Section 1: The above referenced zoning amendment IS CONSISTENT with: 

 

The Town of Clayton’s Strategic Growth Plan, specifically:  

- 2.1 Balance development/investment: old & new. 

- 4.3 More people working and living in Clayton. 

- 4.5 Partner with local economic development organizations. 

 

The Town of Clayton’s Comprehensive Bicycle Plan: not applicable. 

Section 2: Based upon information presented at the public hearings and by the applicant, and 

based upon the recommendations and detailed information developed by staff and the Planning 

Board contained in the staff report, and considering the criteria applicable sections of the Unified 

Development Code of the Town of Clayton, the above referenced zoning amendment is 

reasonable and in the public interest. 

Insert additional specifics if necessary: 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 42 of 178



Page 1 of 1
PPAB 2575888v1

COUNCIL MOTION SHEET
ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 

(Rezoning) 

After considering the recommendations of the Planning Board and Planning 
Director, I move to [approve OR deny]  15-18-01-RZ – Young Family Tract 
Rezoning.

[IF APPROVING]

and to approve the Statement of Consistency and Reasonableness included in the 
Agenda packet [with the following modifications: STATE MODIFICATIONS, IF 
ANY].

Page 43 of 178



Ordinance #2015-08-01 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
AND ZONING MAP 

OF THE TOWN OF CLAYTON, NORTH CAROLINA 

WHEREAS a petition has been filed with the Town Council of the Town of 
Clayton requesting an amendment to the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the 
Town of Clayton to include in the Light Industrial (I-1) zone the property described 
below, said property formerly being zoned  Residential-Estate (R-E); and  

WHEREAS said property is owned by Young Family Irrevocable Trust c/o Jenny Kelling 
(Trustee).; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Board of the Town of Clayton has reviewed the 
proposed change(s) and made a recommendation thereupon; and 

WHEREAS notice of a public hearing to consider the proposed change was 
published in accordance with law in the Clayton News Star, a local newspaper, as 
required by Section 155.702(D) of the Clayton Unified Development Code and by 
Section 160A-364 of the North Carolina General Statutes; and 

WHEREAS a notice of the proposed zoning classification action was mailed to 
the owner(s) of the parcel(s) of land involved, as shown on the County Tax Listings, and 
to the owners of all parcels of land abutting that (those) parcel(s) of land and within 100 
feet of the subject parcel(s) of land, as shown on the County Tax Listings, by depositing a 
copy of the same in the United States Mail, first class postage paid, as required by 
Section 155.702(D) of the Zoning Ordinance of the Town of Clayton and by Section 
160A-384 of the General Statutes; and 

WHEREAS the said public hearing was actually conducted at 6:30 p.m. on 
August 3,  2015, wherein a reasonable opportunity was given to all those in attendance 
to speak either in favor or against the said change or to make relevant comments; 

THEREFORE, after duly considering the matter, THE TOWN COUNCIL OF 
THE TOWN OF CLAYTON DOES HEREBY ORDAIN: 

SECTION 1.  That the Unified Development Code of the Town of Clayton is hereby 
amended to include in the Light Industiral (L-I) zone the following described property: 

General Description: 
Approximately 69.58 acres of property located on Gordon Road, near US Highway 
70 Business., 

Page 44 of 178



Specific Description: 
All of NC Parcel Identification Number: 167700-47-9545 

SECTION 2.  That the official Town of Clayton Zoning Map is hereby amended to 
include in the Light Industrial (I-1) zone the above-described property and will be 
so marked. 

SECTION 3.  That if any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is for any 
reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this 
Ordinance. 

SECTION 4.  That this ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

DULY ADOPTED by the Clayton Town Council this 3rd  day of August, 2015, while 
in regular session. 

____________________________ 
      Jody L. McLeod 

 Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
Kimberly A. Moffett, CMC 
Town Clerk 

Page 45 of 178



Meeting Date:

TOWN OF CLAYTON
TOWN COUNCIL

AGENDA COVER SHEET

AGENDA LOCATION:
Public Hearings August 3, 2015

ITEM TITLE:
Public Hearing - 15-19-O1-RZ - Wiggins Tract Rezoning

DESCRIPTION:
Request of rezoning from R-E to I-1 of 45.73 acres located on Gordon Road near US 70
Highway Business.

POTENTIAL ACTION:

Approval/Disapproval

DEPARTMENT: PRESENTER:
Planning + Zoning David DeYoung

ITEM HISTORY:

Date: Action Taken:
July 20, 2015 Set Public Hearing for August 3, 2015

Information Provided
Staff Report

Date: Action Taken:

Information Provided:

Page 46 of 178



PUBLIC NOTICE

In accordance with NC GS 160A-384, the
Clayton Town Council will hold a public
hearing on August 3rd, 2015, at 6:30 PM
at Town Hall, 111 East Second Street, to
consider rezoning request 15-19-01-RZ
for the Wiggins Tract, parcel number(s)
167700-67-6564, within the town's ETJ.
The requested change is from
Residential-Estate (R-E) to Light Indus-
trial (I-1).
     The Clayton Town Council reserves
the right to approve the request as pre-
sented or any portion of the request
without necessity of withdrawal or modi-
fication of the application or additional
public hearing on the matter.  Likewise,
the Town Council may designate appro-
val to the district requested or another
district or districts without modification
of the request or additional public hear-
ing.
     Persons wishing to submit a petition
of protest intended to invoke the rules
established by N.C. General Statute
160A-385 must submit said petition on
forms provided by the Town Clerk not
later than 5:00 PM on Wednesday, July
29th, 2015.
     This is an open meeting and the pub-
lic is invited to attend.

     Jay McLeod, Planner 919-359-9335

N&O: July 23, 30, 2015

Page 47 of 178



 
 
 
 

 
Planning Board  

June 22, 2015 

STAFF REPORT 

 

Application Number: 15-19-01-RZ 
Project Name: Wiggins Tract Rezoning 

 
 
NC PIN / Tag #: 167700-67-6564 / 05I05022A 
Town Limits/ETJ: ETJ 
Overlay: Small Area Plan (Future Land Use) / Johnston County Research & Training Zone (Johnston 

County Economic Training Zone) 
Applicant:  Norwood Thompson  
Owner: Ida S. Wiggins 
Location: The property is located on Gordon Rd, near US Hwy 70 Business (see map). 
 
Public Noticing:  
• Neighborhood meeting May 12, 2015 
• Sign posted June 09, 2015 
• Letters mailed prior to July 22, 2015 
• Newspaper ad posted prior to July 22, 2015 
 
REQUEST:   Rezoning from Residential-Estate (R-E) to Light Industrial (I-1).  
 

Town of Clayton 
Planning Department 

111 E. Second Street, Clayton, NC 27520 
P.O. Box 879, Clayton, NC 27528 

Phone:  919-553-1545 
Fax:  919-553-1720 

Page 1 of 4 
 

Page 48 of 178



 
SITE DATA: 
Acreage: 45.73 acres  
Existing Use: Agriculture 
 
 
ADJACENT ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 
Direction Zoning Existing Use 

North Light Industrial (I-1) Agricultural 
South County Agricultural Residential (AR) Residential subdivision (Edinburgh) 
East County Agricultural Residential (AR) Agricultural 
West Residential-Estate (R-E) Agricultural 

 
   
 
STAFF ANALYSIS AND COMMENTARY: 
 
Overview 
The applicant is requesting to rezone 45± acres from Residential-Estate to Light Industrial. This piece of land is 
currently agricultural and primarily fronts along Gordon Rd, just north of the intersection of Hwy 70 Business 
and Hwy 70 Bypass. The land is on the outside border of the Town’s Extraterritorial Planning Jurisdiction (ETJ).   
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Land Uses 
The site is located on the outside boundary of the industrial and technology-oriented uses that currently occupy 
the industrially-zoned land to the north. It is on the developing fringe of Clayton’s ETJ.  
 
A small residential subdivision (Edinburgh) is located on the other side of Gordon Rd. This subdivision is served 
by a connection to Gordon Rd, which is their only ingress/egress to their neighborhood. The neighborhood does 
have a stub-out street heading east, but the adjacent property is not yet developed, and even when it is the 
second connection will still be to Gordon Rd. 
 
Other uses surrounding the subject property are primarily agricultural or rural residential. 
 
Access/Streets:   
Primary access to the property is from Gordon Rd. As parcels to the north are developed, it may be possible to 
make a second connection to North Tech Dr. The proximity to the US Hwy 70 Business and Hwy 70 Bypass 
interchange is supportive of an industrial-type use that might involve utilization of freight shipping corridors. 
 
Consistency with the Strategic Growth Plan 
The 2008 Strategic Growth Plan designates this area as a “Small Area Plan” adjacent to Industrial Future Land 
Use on the north, and the highway interchange on the southwest. This rezoning is consistent with the intent of 
the Future Land Use for these and surrounding lands, as controlled by the Scenic Highway Overlay discussed 
below. 
  

Page 2 of 4 
 

Page 49 of 178



Staff Report 
15-18-01-RZ Wiggins Family Tract 

 
Consistency with Overlays 
This rezoning is likely in anticipation of subsequent inclusion of the subject property into the Johnston County 
Research and Training Zone (aka Economic Training Zone). The Johnston County Research and Training Zone 
(RTZ) is a specialized taxing district which houses the biotech, chemical, and pharmaceutical manufacturing 
companies along the US Hwy 70 Business corridor such as Grifols, Novo Nordisk, etc. If this should occur, Board 
of County Commissioner and Town Council permission is required prior to any inclusion into the RTZ. Properties 
included in the RTZ are not allowed to be annexed by the Town and have their property taxes fixed at a rate set 
when they are accepted into the RTZ. 
 

 
 
 
 
CONSIDERATIONS:  
 

• Rezonings are decided by the Town Council. The Planning Board shall make a recommendation to the 
Town Council.  

• When adopting or rejecting the rezoning, the Town Council shall approve a statement describing 
whether its action is consistent with adopted plans and/or policies of the Town and explaining why the 
Council considers the action taken to be reasonable and in the public interest. 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Page 50 of 178



Staff Report 
15-18-01-RZ Wiggins Family Tract 

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff is recommending approval of the rezoning of the subject parcel. 
 

 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1) Aerial Map 
2) Existing and Proposed Zoning Map 
3) Proposed Land Use Map 
4) Application 
5) Neighborhood Meeting Materials  
6) Letter Opposing Rezoning 

 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Page 51 of 178



GORDON RD  

US 70 BUS HWY W

WISE RD  

US 70 HWY W

POWHATAN RD  

TE
CH

 PA
RK

 LN
  

PONY FARM RD  

Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal
responsibility for the information represented here.

15-19-01-RZ Wiggins Family Tract Rezoning
Rezoning from R-E to I-1

Produced by: TOC Planning

Applicant: Norwood Thompson
Property Owner: Ida S. Wiggins
Parcel ID Number: 167700-67-6564
Tag #: 05I05022A

03/14/2015

GORDON RD  

US 70 BUS HWY W

POWHATAN RD  

0 0.20.1 Miles

Vicinity Map

Aerial Map

0 3,0001,500
Feet

 ±

Subject parcel

P
age 52 of 178



R-E

I-2

I-1

B-2

B-3

O-I

GORDON RD  

US 70 BUS HWY W

WI
SE

 R
D 

 

PO
WHA

TA
N R

D  

Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal
responsibility for the information represented here.

15-19-01-RZ Wiggins Family Tract Rezoning
Rezoning from R-E to I-1

Produced by: TOC Planning

Applicant: Norwood Thompson
Property Owner: Ida S. Wiggins
Parcel ID Number: 167700-67-6564
Tag #: 05I05022A

06/15/2015

GORDON RD  

US 70 BUS HWY W

POWHATAN RD  

0 0.20.1 Miles

I-1R-E

I-1

B-2

B-3

GORDON RD  

US 70 BUS HWY W

WI
SE

 R
D 

 

POWHATAN RD  

±

Vicinity Map

Proposed Zoning MapCurrent Zoning Map

0 1,800900 Feet
0 1,800900 Feet

 

Legend
Subject Parcel R-E

R-10
R-8
R-6
PD-R
O-R
B-1

B-2
B-3
PD-C
I-1
I-2
O-I
PD-MUP

age 53 of 178



Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal
responsibility for the information represented here.

15-19-01-RZ Wiggins Family Tract Rezoning
Rezoning from R-E to I-1

Produced by: TOC Planning

06/15/2015

GORDON RD  

US 70 BUS HWY W

POWHATAN RD  

0 0.20.1 Miles

INDUSTRIAL

SMALL AREA PLANRESIDENTIAL-MEDIUM

GORDON RD  

US 70 BUS HWY W

WISE RD  

US 70 HWY W

POWHATAN RD  

PONY FARM RD  

HARVEST MILL LN  

±

Vicinity Map

Proposed Land Use Map (Source: 2008 Strategic Growth Plan)

0 1,900950
Feet

Legend
Subject Parcel

PROPOSED LAND USE
CBD
COMMERCIAL
INDUSTRIAL
MULTI-FAMILY
NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL
OFFICE INSTITUTIONAL
OPEN SPACE CONSERVATION
PUBLIC
RESIDENTIAL-INFILL
RESIDENTIAL-LIGHT
RESIDENTIAL-MEDIUM
SMALL AREA PLAN

Applicant: Norwood Thompson
Property Owner: Ida S. Wiggins
Parcel ID Number: 167700-67-6564
Tag #: 05I05022A

 

P
age 54 of 178



Page 55 of 178



Page 56 of 178



Page 57 of 178



Page 58 of 178



Page 59 of 178



Page 60 of 178



Page 61 of 178



Page 62 of 178



Page 63 of 178



Page 64 of 178



Page 65 of 178



P
age 66 of 178



P
age 67 of 178



P
age 68 of 178



Page 69 of 178



 

PPAB 2574608v1 

TOWN OF CLAYTON 

ZONING AMENDMENT 

CONSISTENCY AND REASONABLENESS STATEMENT 

15-19-01-RZ, Wiggins Tract rezoning 

 

The Town Council of the Town of Clayton hereby states: 

  
Section 1: The above referenced zoning amendment IS CONSISTENT with: 

 

The Town of Clayton’s Strategic Growth Plan, specifically:  

- 2.1 Balance development/investment: old & new. 

- 4.3 More people working and living in Clayton. 

- 4.5 Partner with local economic development organizations. 

 

The Town of Clayton’s Comprehensive Bicycle Plan: not applicable. 

Section 2: Based upon information presented at the public hearings and by the applicant, and 

based upon the recommendations and detailed information developed by staff and the Planning 

Board contained in the staff report, and considering the criteria applicable sections of the Unified 

Development Code of the Town of Clayton, the above referenced zoning amendment is 

reasonable and in the public interest. 

Insert additional specifics if necessary: 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 70 of 178



Page 1 of 1
PPAB 2575888v1

COUNCIL MOTION SHEET
ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 

(Rezoning) 

After considering the recommendations of the Planning Board and Planning 
Director, I move to [approve OR deny]  15-19-01-RZ – Wiggins Tract 
Rezoning.

[IF APPROVING]

and to approve the Statement of Consistency and Reasonableness included in the 
Agenda packet [with the following modifications: STATE MODIFICATIONS, IF 
ANY].

Page 71 of 178



Ordinance #2015-08-02 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
AND ZONING MAP 

OF THE TOWN OF CLAYTON, NORTH CAROLINA 

WHEREAS a petition has been filed with the Town Council of the Town of 
Clayton requesting an amendment to the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the 
Town of Clayton to include in the Light Industrial (I-1) zone the property described 
below, said property formerly being zoned  Residential-Estate (R-E); and  

WHEREAS said property is owned by Ida S. Wiggins; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Board of the Town of Clayton has reviewed the 
proposed change(s) and made a recommendation thereupon; and 

WHEREAS notice of a public hearing to consider the proposed change was 
published in accordance with law in the Clayton News Star, a local newspaper, as 
required by Section 155.702(D) of the Clayton Unified Development Code and by 
Section 160A-364 of the North Carolina General Statutes; and 

WHEREAS a notice of the proposed zoning classification action was mailed to 
the owner(s) of the parcel(s) of land involved, as shown on the County Tax Listings, and 
to the owners of all parcels of land abutting that (those) parcel(s) of land and within 100 
feet of the subject parcel(s) of land, as shown on the County Tax Listings, by depositing a 
copy of the same in the United States Mail, first class postage paid, as required by 
Section 155.702(D) of the Zoning Ordinance of the Town of Clayton and by Section 
160A-384 of the General Statutes; and 

WHEREAS the said public hearing was actually conducted at 6:30 p.m. on 
August 3,  2015, wherein a reasonable opportunity was given to all those in attendance 
to speak either in favor or against the said change or to make relevant comments; 

THEREFORE, after duly considering the matter, THE TOWN COUNCIL OF 
THE TOWN OF CLAYTON DOES HEREBY ORDAIN: 

SECTION 1.  That the Unified Development Code of the Town of Clayton is hereby 
amended to include in the Light Industiral (L-I) zone the following described property: 

General Description: 
Approximately 45.73 acres of property located on Gordon Road, near US Highway 
70 Business.

Page 72 of 178



Specific Description: 
All of NC Parcel Identification Number: 167700-67-6564 

SECTION 2.  That the official Town of Clayton Zoning Map is hereby amended to 
include in the Light Industrial (I-1) zone the above-described property and will be 
so marked. 

SECTION 3.  That if any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is for any 
reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this 
Ordinance. 

SECTION 4.  That this ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

DULY ADOPTED by the Clayton Town Council this 3rd  day of August, 2015, while 
in regular session. 

____________________________ 
      Jody L. McLeod 

 Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
Kimberly A. Moffett, CMC 
Town Clerk 

Page 73 of 178



TOWN OF CLAYTON
TOWN COUNCIL

AGENDA COVER SHEET

AGENDA LOCATION:
Public Hearings August 3, 2015

ITEM TITLE:
Public Hearing - PSD 2014-97 - Magnolia Pointe Subdivision — Preliminary Plat

DESCRIPTION:
Request for preliminary subdivision plat for major subdivision of between 35 and 40
single family residential units. Property is located on and west off of Shotwell Rd.,
between US 70 Business Hwy W and Amelia Church Road.

POTENTIAL ACTION:
Approval/Disapproval

DEPARTMENT: PRESENTER:
Planning + Zoning David DeYoung

ITEM HISTORY:

Date: Action Taken:
July 20, 2015 Set Public Hearing for August 3, 2015

Information Provided:
Staff Report

Date: Action Taken:

Information Provided:

Page 74 of 178



PUBLIC NOTICE

In accordance with NC GS 160A-364 the
Clayton Town Council will hold an evi-
dentiary hearing on August 3, 2015, at
6:30 PM at Town Hall, 111 East Second
Street, to consider preliminary subdivi-
sion request PSD2014-97, Magnolia
Pointe preliminary plat (subdivision),
requesting to divide 13.89 acres into 38
single family residential lots.  The prop-
erty is bounded by Shotwell Road on the
east, and is between US 70 Hwy Business
and Amelia Church Road; parcel num-
ber 165914-33-6257.
     During an evidentiary hearing, the
Clayton Town Council must make find-
ings of fact based upon sworn testimony
and other credible evidence.  Citizens
may give testimony in an evidentiary
hearing after they have taken an oath.
     This is an open meeting and the pub-
lic is invited to attend.

     Jay McLeod, Planner 919-359-9335

N&O: July 23, 30, 2015

Page 75 of 178



 
 
 
 

 
Planning Board 

April 20, 2015 

STAFF REPORT 

 
Application Number:  PSD 2014-97 
Project Name: Magnolia Pointe Major Subdivision – Preliminary Plat 
 
NC PIN / Tag #: 165914-33-6257 / 05B02031V 
Town Limits/ETJ: Town Limits 
Overlay: NA 
Applicant:  ASCO Builders Inc., c/o Matt Shephens (mattshephens@bellsouth.net)  
Owner: ASCO Builders Inc. 
 
Neighborhood Meeting:   meeting pending 
Public Noticing:  

• sign posted April 17, 2015 
• letters mailed TBD, 2015 
• newspaper ad TBD, 2015 

 
 
PROJECT LOCATION:   The property is located on and west off of Shotwell Road, between US 70 Bus Hwy W 
and Amelia Church Rd. It is a vacant lot directly across from Lion’s Spring development. 
 
 
REQUEST:   The applicant is requesting preliminary subdivision plat approval for the major subdivision of the 
subject property to allow between 35 and 40 single family detached residential units. 
 
 
SITE DATA: 

Acreage: 13.89 acres 

Existing Zoning:  Planned Development Mixed Use (PD-MU) and Residential-10 (R-10)  

Proposed Zoning: Residential-8 (R-8) (a concurrent rezoning application exists (RZ 2014-99) to rezone 
to R-8) 

Existing Use: Vacant  

Existing Impervious:  None - property is vacant. 

 
DEVELOPMENT DATA: 

Proposed Uses: single family detached residential units in an R-8 Open Space Subdivision 

Town of Clayton 
Planning Department 

111 E. Second Street, Clayton, NC 27520 
P.O. Box 879, Clayton, NC 27528 

Phone:  919-553-5002 
Fax:  919-553-1720 

Page 1 of 5 
 

Page 76 of 178

mailto:mattshephens@bellsouth.net


Buildings: 37 residential units 

Number of Stories: Maximum height of 35 feet 

Impervious Surface: Maximum 55% impervious for overall development 

Required Parking: 2 spaces per unit 

Proposed Parking: 2 spaces per unit 

Fire Protection: The Town of Clayton Fire Department will provide fire protection.  

Access/Streets:  Two access points onto Shotwell Road. 

Water/Sewer Provider: Town of Clayton 

Electric Provider: Town of Clayton  

 
 
ADJACENT ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 
North:   Zoning: Residential-Estate (R-E) 

Existing Use: Single Family Residential 
 
South:   Zoning: Planned Development Mixed Use (PD-MU) and Office-Institutional (O-I) 
 Existing Use: Lion’s Gate single-family subdivision and a medical office. 
 
East:  Zoning: Residential-Estate (R-E) 
 Existing Use: Lion’s Gate single-family subdivision and Lion’s Spring retirement residential 
 
West:  Zoning: Residential-Estate (R-E) 
 Existing Use: Single Family Residential  
   
 
STAFF ANALYSIS AND COMMENTARY: 
 
Overview 
The applicant is requesting preliminary subdivision plat approval for a new single family residential subdivision. 
This would be an Open-Space R-8 subdivision and is running concurrently with a rezoning (RZ2014-97).  
 
Consistency with the Strategic Growth Plan 
The request is consistent with the Strategic Growth Plan. 
 
Consistency with the Unified Development Code 
The proposed development is consistent with and meets the applicable requirements of the Unified 
Development Code (UDC).   
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Land Uses 
This use is compatible with surrounding residential uses. 

 
Landscaping and Buffering 

Page 2 of 5 
 

Page 77 of 178



A perimeter landscape buffer (Class C) is required along the entire boundary of the property. An existing sewer 
easement is along the northern border. A riparian buffer, which includes 100-year floodplain resource 
conservation area, exists on the western and northern borders of the project and will be used to achieve the 
landscaping buffer along those sides.  
The proposed buffer along Shotwell Rd, in lieu of a traditional Class C buffer, is Leyland Cypress trees, spaced 10’ 
on center. Leyland Cypress trees are fast growing and can eventually become 70’ tall and 15’ wide. At 10’ on 
center, they should provide an almost immediate evergreen visual screen. 
 
Recreation and Open Space 
The development will meet the requirements of an Open-Space Subdivision, through a 0.44 acre active 
recreation site and a 3.78 passive open space site. 
 
Environmental  
Resource conservation areas (stream buffers, 100-year flood zones) shall be preserved by a binding legal 
instrument recorded with the deed as each phase is platted. Riparian buffers not considered “stream buffers” by 
the UDC must meet all state preservation requirements. 
 
Signs 
Signage will be located at the entrances to the project, and will occur as a separate sign application. They will 
not be allowed to encroach upon the safe sight triangles at the intersections. 
 
Access/Streets  
Access will be from Shotwell Road, and will require driveway permits from NCDOT. The “bump-out” turn in the 
road within the development, on the west side, has been approved by the Town Engineer. 

 
Multi-Modal Access 
Sidewalks are provided along both sides of all streets. A sidewalk will be provided along Shotwell Road along the 
entirety of the parcel. 
 
Garbage / Recycling 
Roll-out garbage cans will be utilized. 

 
Architecture/Design 
The request is for a single family detached home subdivision. As it has been designed as an Open Space 
Subdivision, minimum lot sizes are 6,000 square feet (per standards for R-8 zoning). 
 

 
Waivers/Deviations/Variances from Code Requirements 
The applicant may request an alternate landscape buffer along Shotwell Rd. 
 
 
CONSIDERATIONS:  
 

• The applicant is requesting Preliminary Subdivision Plat approval of a R-8 Open Space Residential 
Subdivision. 

• This approval is subject to concurrent approval of RZ2014-99 Magnolia Pointe rezoning to R-8.   

Page 3 of 5 
 

Page 78 of 178



• Preliminary Subdivision Plats (major subdivisions) are decided by the Town Council. The Planning Board 
shall make a recommendation to the Town Council. 

• The applicant appears to be proposing an alternative landscape buffer along Shotwell Rd, in the form of 
Leyland Cypress, planted 10’ on center. 

 
 
FINDINGS: 
 
The applicant has addressed the Major Subdivision Approval Criteria outlined in UDC Section 155.706.  The 
applicant’s Findings of Fact are incorporated into the record as an attachment to the Staff Report. 
 
 
 
 
CONDITIONS: 
 
If approved, staff recommends the following conditions be applied to the approval of the preliminary subdivision 
plan: 
 

1. Following Board approvals, three copies of the final Preliminary Subdivision Plat meeting the 
requirements of the Conditions of Approval shall be submitted to Planning Department for final 
approval. 

2. The final plat and subsequent development of the site shall be consistent with the specifications of the 
approved Preliminary Subdivision Plat. Modifications may require additional approvals pursuant to 
Section 155.706 of the Unified Development Code.  

3. All development fees shall be paid prior to final plat recordation, except that Capacity fees shall be paid 
prior to issuance of building permits. 

4. A sidewalk shall be constructed along Shotwell Rd along the entirety of the parcel, site, or development, 
including areas that will remain undeveloped or are reserved for future development. 

5. No buildings shall be constructed within 20’ of any riparian buffer, per UDC §155.502(D). 

6. A Class C buffer (or other Planning Dept. approved buffer) will be installed on the perimeter of the 
development, per Open-Space Subdivision development regulations. A waiver must be obtained for 
any alternate landscape buffer areas. 

7. Five foot wide sidewalks shall be installed on both sides of all  internal roads, including around the 
entirety of all cul-de-sacs, and shall be constructed or bonded prior to plat recordation for the 
associated phase. 

8. A homeowners’ association document shall be reviewed by staff and recorded prior to final plats. 
Such document shall assure responsibility for maintenance of all common facilities and provide 
adequate means for funding to do so. 

9. Resource conservation areas as defined by Section 155.500 of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) shall be identified on the final plats as being permanently set aside, and shall be protected in 

Page 4 of 5 
 

Page 79 of 178



perpetuity by a binding legal instrument recorded with the deed which includes clear restriction on 
the use of the resource conservation area, as described in Section 155.500(F) of the UDC. 

10. The perimeter landscaping buffer along Shotwell Rd must be installed prior to the issuance of a 
Certificate of Occupancy for the first dwelling. 

11. All scheduled improvements to Shotwell Rd must be constructed or bonded prior to the issuance of 
a Certificate of Occupancy for the first dwelling. 

12. An updated wastewater allocation request must be approved by the Town Manager. 

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the preliminary subdivision with the conditions listed above. 
 

 
Planning Board Recommendation:    
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1) Aerial Map 
2) Existing and Proposed Zoning Map 
3) Subdivision Findings of Fact  
4) Preliminary Subdivision Plat  
5) Application 
6) Neighborhood Meeting Materials (if available) 
7) Planning Board Motion Form 

 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

Page 80 of 178



SH
OTW

EL
L R

D  

MULBERRY RD  

RIDGE DR  

US 70 BUS HWY W

VE
RR

AZ
AN

O 
PL

  TUSCARORA LN  

SIO
UX

 LN
  

KENMORE DR  

KE
SW

ICK
 LN

  

Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal
responsibility for the information represented here.

PSD2014-97 and RZ2014-99 Magnolia Pointe Subdivision
Subdivision and Rezoning from R-10 and PD-MU to R-8

Produced by: TOC Planning

Applicant: ASCO Builders Inc
Property Owner: ASCO Builders Inc
Parcel ID Number: 165914-33-6257
Tag #: 05B02031V

03/14/2015

GUY RD  

US 70 BUS HWY W MAIN ST  

SH
OT

WE
LL

 R
D 

 

CIT
Y R

D 
 

LOMBARD ST  

MULBERRY RD  
RIDGE DR  

SE
S D

R 
 

BROOK ST  

0 2,9001,450 Feet

Vicinity Map

Aerial Map

0 500250 Feet

 ±

Subject parcel

Document Path: O:\PLANNING\REZONING\Rezoning\2014\RZ 2014-99 Magnolia Pointe Rezoning\maps\Staff Rpt Map RZ2014-99 - Aerial.mxd

P
age 81 of 178



B-3

PD-C

R-E

R-10

PD-MUO-I

SH
OTW

EL
L R

D  

US 70 BUS HWY W

MULBERRY RD  

RIDGE DR  

FE
RN

WOO
D D

R  

TUSCARORA LN  

VE
RR

AZ
AN

O 
PL

  SIOUX LN  
Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal
responsibility for the information represented here.

PSD2014-97 and RZ2014-99 Magnolia Pointe Subdivision
Subdivision and Rezoning from R-10 and PD-MU to R-8

Produced by: TOC Planning

Applicant: ASCO Builders Inc
Property Owner: ASCO Builders Inc
Parcel ID Number: 165914-33-6257
Tag #: 05B02031V

3/14/2015

GUY RD  

US 70 BUS HWY W
MAIN ST  SH

OT
WE

LL
 R

D 
 

LOMBARD ST  

MULBERRY RD  
RIDGE DR  

SE
S D

R 
 

BROOK ST  

0 4,7002,350 Feet

B-3

PD-C

R-E

R-10

PD-MUO-I

SH
OTW

EL
L R

D  

US 70 BUS HWY W

MULBERRY RD  

RIDGE DR  

FE
RN

WOO
D D

R  

TUSCARORA LN  

VE
RR

AZ
AN

O 
PL

  SIOUX LN  

±

Vicinity Map

Proposed Zoning MapCurrent Zoning Map

0 1,000500 Feet0 1,000500 Feet

 

Document Path: O:\PLANNING\REZONING\Rezoning\2014\RZ 2014-99 Magnolia Pointe Rezoning\maps\Staff Rpt Map RZ2014-99 - Existing and Proposed Zoning.mxd

R-8

Legend
Subject parcel
R-E
R-10
R-8
R-6
PD-R
O-R
B-1

B-2
B-3
PD-C
I-1
I-2
O-I
PD-MU

R-10

P
age 82 of 178



Page 83 of 178



Page 84 of 178



Page 85 of 178



Page 86 of 178



Page 87 of 178



P
age 88 of 178



P
age 89 of 178



P
age 90 of 178



P
age 91 of 178



P
age 92 of 178



P
age 93 of 178



P
age 94 of 178



P
age 95 of 178



P
age 96 of 178



P
age 97 of 178



P
age 98 of 178



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
Date:  May 21, 2015    
 
To:  Planning Board  
 
From:  Planning Staff 
 
SUBJECT: ADDENDUM TO STAFF REPORT FOR MAGNOLIA POINTE SUBDIVISION 
PSD2014-97      
 
 
At the April 27, 2015 Planning Board meeting, the above referenced application was tabled until 
further information could be submitted by the applicant to address concerns raised by the 
Planning Board. Board concerns ranged from landscaping and buffering to public safety. The 
attached email(s) detail which information was subsequently requested from the applicant.  
 
The applicant did hold another Neighborhood Meeting on May 8, to inform neighbors of the 
revised rezoning and subdivision application, and subsequently submitted minutes to the Planning 
Department. These materials are attached. 
 
To date, the applicant has not submitted the remaining information that was requested, which 
included Board concerns about the following: 
 

• Landscaping buffer and screening along Shotwell Road 
• Steep grading of lots and common areas 
• Landscape plantings underneath the powerline easement 
• Cross-sections detailing the above 

 
Attachments: 

 
1. Email requesting additional information 
2. Neighborhood meeting minutes from May 8th meeting 

Town of Clayton 
Planning Department 

111 E. Second Street, Clayton, NC 27520 
P.O. Box 879, Clayton, NC 27528 

Phone:  919-553-5002 
Fax:  919-553-1720 

Page 1 of 1 
 

Page 99 of 178



1

Jay McLeod

From: Jay McLeod
Sent: Friday, May 08, 2015 10:59 AM
To: 'mattstephens@bellsouth.net'
Cc: Michael Stewart (stewartpe@aol.com); David DeYoung
Subject: retaining wall for Magnolia Pointe subdivision plans PSD2014-97

Hi, 
 
As part of the plan revisions before the next Planning Board meeting on May 26, 2015 for the proposed Magnolia Pointe 
subdivision (PSD2014‐97), please include a retaining wall on the site plans for the slope that is proposed adjacent to 
Shotwell Rd. The Planning Board expressed the opinion at the last meeting that this slope was too steep to be safely 
executed, particularly with the landscaping buffer as part of the equation. The Planning Department agrees that the 
most effective solution to this design problem may involve a retaining wall, and that any slopes on the site must be 3:1 
or less.  
 
Please also want to consider using a maximum slope of 3:1 for all slopes on the site, particularly since Planning Board 
members also raised concern about other slopes being too steep, most notably the slopes in the backyard of homes 
adjacent to the stormwater BMPs. Adding a cross‐section showing this area would also help to alleviate Planning Board 
member concerns. 
 
Along with the previously requested information for this application, please send a cross‐section showing Shotwell Rd, 
the landscaping buffer (including a drawing of the trees proposed), a retaining wall, and the yard of the proposed homes 
adjacent to Shotwell Rd. I suggest that on this cross‐section you use the same scale for both the vertical and horizontal 
axes. 
 
If you do not consider the above‐proposed design solutions feasible or you have alternative solutions to propose, please 
respond in writing by May 12, so that those responses can be included in the information presented to Planning Board at 
their next meeting. 
 
Please deliver these cross‐sections and plan revisions prior to May 12, along with the previously requested information. 
To summarize, the previously requested information is: 

 Stamped, addressed letters 

 Landscaping buffer and screening on Shotwell Rd. 

 Steep grading concerns 

 Neighborhood meeting minutes 

 The above‐mentioned cross‐sections 
 
If you have any questions, please contact me. 
 
Thanks, 
Jay McLeod, AICP 
Planner 
Town of Clayton 
111 East Second Street | PO Box 879 | Clayton, NC 27528 
P (919)359-9335  |  F (919)553-1720   
jwmcleod@townofclaytonnc.org 
 

Page 100 of 178



Page 101 of 178



Page 102 of 178



Page 103 of 178



Page 104 of 178



Page 105 of 178



Page 106 of 178



Page 107 of 178



Page 108 of 178



Page 109 of 178



 
 
 
 

 
Planning Board 

April 20, 2015 

STAFF REPORT 

 
Application Number:  PSD 2014-97 
Project Name: Magnolia Pointe Major Subdivision – Preliminary Plat 
 
NC PIN / Tag #: 165914-33-6257 / 05B02031V 
Town Limits/ETJ: Town Limits 
Overlay: NA 
Applicant:  ASCO Builders Inc., c/o Matt Shephens (mattshephens@bellsouth.net)  
Owner: ASCO Builders Inc. 
 
Neighborhood Meeting:   meeting pending 
Public Noticing:  

• sign posted April 17, 2015 
• letters mailed TBD, 2015 
• newspaper ad TBD, 2015 

 
 
PROJECT LOCATION:   The property is located on and west off of Shotwell Road, between US 70 Bus Hwy W 
and Amelia Church Rd. It is a vacant lot directly across from Lion’s Spring development. 
 
 
REQUEST:   The applicant is requesting preliminary subdivision plat approval for the major subdivision of the 
subject property to allow between 35 and 40 single family detached residential units. 
 
 
SITE DATA: 

Acreage: 13.89 acres 

Existing Zoning:  Planned Development Mixed Use (PD-MU) and Residential-10 (R-10)  

Proposed Zoning: Residential-8 (R-8) (a concurrent rezoning application exists (RZ 2014-99) to rezone 
to R-8) 

Existing Use: Vacant  

Existing Impervious:  None - property is vacant. 

 
DEVELOPMENT DATA: 

Proposed Uses: single family detached residential units in an R-8 Open Space Subdivision 

Town of Clayton 
Planning Department 

111 E. Second Street, Clayton, NC 27520 
P.O. Box 879, Clayton, NC 27528 

Phone:  919-553-5002 
Fax:  919-553-1720 

Page 1 of 5 
 

Page 110 of 178

mailto:mattshephens@bellsouth.net


Buildings: 37 residential units 

Number of Stories: Maximum height of 35 feet 

Impervious Surface: Maximum 55% impervious for overall development 

Required Parking: 2 spaces per unit 

Proposed Parking: 2 spaces per unit 

Fire Protection: The Town of Clayton Fire Department will provide fire protection.  

Access/Streets:  Two access points onto Shotwell Road. 

Water/Sewer Provider: Town of Clayton 

Electric Provider: Town of Clayton  

 
 
ADJACENT ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 
North:   Zoning: Residential-Estate (R-E) 

Existing Use: Single Family Residential 
 
South:   Zoning: Planned Development Mixed Use (PD-MU) and Office-Institutional (O-I) 
 Existing Use: Lion’s Gate single-family subdivision and a medical office. 
 
East:  Zoning: Residential-Estate (R-E) 
 Existing Use: Lion’s Gate single-family subdivision and Lion’s Spring retirement residential 
 
West:  Zoning: Residential-Estate (R-E) 
 Existing Use: Single Family Residential  
   
 
STAFF ANALYSIS AND COMMENTARY: 
 
Overview 
The applicant is requesting preliminary subdivision plat approval for a new single family residential subdivision. 
This would be an Open-Space R-8 subdivision and is running concurrently with a rezoning (RZ2014-97).  
 
Consistency with the Strategic Growth Plan 
The request is consistent with the Strategic Growth Plan. 
 
Consistency with the Unified Development Code 
The proposed development is consistent with and meets the applicable requirements of the Unified 
Development Code (UDC).   
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Land Uses 
This use is compatible with surrounding residential uses. 

 
Landscaping and Buffering 

Page 2 of 5 
 

Page 111 of 178



A perimeter landscape buffer (Class C) is required along the entire boundary of the property. An existing sewer 
easement is along the northern border. A riparian buffer, which includes 100-year floodplain resource 
conservation area, exists on the western and northern borders of the project and will be used to achieve the 
landscaping buffer along those sides.  
The proposed buffer along Shotwell Rd, in lieu of a traditional Class C buffer, is Leyland Cypress trees, spaced 10’ 
on center. Leyland Cypress trees are fast growing and can eventually become 70’ tall and 15’ wide. At 10’ on 
center, they should provide an almost immediate evergreen visual screen. 
 
Recreation and Open Space 
The development will meet the requirements of an Open-Space Subdivision, through a 0.44 acre active 
recreation site and a 3.78 passive open space site. 
 
Environmental  
Resource conservation areas (stream buffers, 100-year flood zones) shall be preserved by a binding legal 
instrument recorded with the deed as each phase is platted. Riparian buffers not considered “stream buffers” by 
the UDC must meet all state preservation requirements. 
 
Signs 
Signage will be located at the entrances to the project, and will occur as a separate sign application. They will 
not be allowed to encroach upon the safe sight triangles at the intersections. 
 
Access/Streets  
Access will be from Shotwell Road, and will require driveway permits from NCDOT. The “bump-out” turn in the 
road within the development, on the west side, has been approved by the Town Engineer. 

 
Multi-Modal Access 
Sidewalks are provided along both sides of all streets. A sidewalk will be provided along Shotwell Road along the 
entirety of the parcel. 
 
Garbage / Recycling 
Roll-out garbage cans will be utilized. 

 
Architecture/Design 
The request is for a single family detached home subdivision. As it has been designed as an Open Space 
Subdivision, minimum lot sizes are 6,000 square feet (per standards for R-8 zoning). 
 

 
Waivers/Deviations/Variances from Code Requirements 
The applicant may request an alternate landscape buffer along Shotwell Rd. 
 
 
CONSIDERATIONS:  
 

• The applicant is requesting Preliminary Subdivision Plat approval of a R-8 Open Space Residential 
Subdivision. 

• This approval is subject to concurrent approval of RZ2014-99 Magnolia Pointe rezoning to R-8.   

Page 3 of 5 
 

Page 112 of 178



• Preliminary Subdivision Plats (major subdivisions) are decided by the Town Council. The Planning Board 
shall make a recommendation to the Town Council. 

• The applicant appears to be proposing an alternative landscape buffer along Shotwell Rd, in the form of 
Leyland Cypress, planted 10’ on center. 

 
 
FINDINGS: 
 
The applicant has addressed the Major Subdivision Approval Criteria outlined in UDC Section 155.706.  The 
applicant’s Findings of Fact are incorporated into the record as an attachment to the Staff Report. 
 
 
 
 
CONDITIONS: 
 
If approved, staff recommends the following conditions be applied to the approval of the preliminary subdivision 
plan: 
 

1. Following Board approvals, three copies of the final Preliminary Subdivision Plat meeting the 
requirements of the Conditions of Approval shall be submitted to Planning Department for final 
approval. 

2. The final plat and subsequent development of the site shall be consistent with the specifications of the 
approved Preliminary Subdivision Plat. Modifications may require additional approvals pursuant to 
Section 155.706 of the Unified Development Code.  

3. All development fees shall be paid prior to final plat recordation, except that Capacity fees shall be paid 
prior to issuance of building permits. 

4. A sidewalk shall be constructed along Shotwell Rd along the entirety of the parcel, site, or development, 
including areas that will remain undeveloped or are reserved for future development. 

5. No buildings shall be constructed within 20’ of any riparian buffer, per UDC §155.502(D). 

6. A Class C buffer (or other Planning Dept. approved buffer) will be installed on the perimeter of the 
development, per Open-Space Subdivision development regulations. A waiver must be obtained for 
any alternate landscape buffer areas. 

7. Five foot wide sidewalks shall be installed on both sides of all  internal roads, including around the 
entirety of all cul-de-sacs, and shall be constructed or bonded prior to plat recordation for the 
associated phase. 

8. A homeowners’ association document shall be reviewed by staff and recorded prior to final plats. 
Such document shall assure responsibility for maintenance of all common facilities and provide 
adequate means for funding to do so. 

9. Resource conservation areas as defined by Section 155.500 of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) shall be identified on the final plats as being permanently set aside, and shall be protected in 

Page 4 of 5 
 

Page 113 of 178



perpetuity by a binding legal instrument recorded with the deed which includes clear restriction on 
the use of the resource conservation area, as described in Section 155.500(F) of the UDC. 

10. The perimeter landscaping buffer along Shotwell Rd must be installed prior to the issuance of a 
Certificate of Occupancy for the first dwelling. 

11. All scheduled improvements to Shotwell Rd must be constructed or bonded prior to the issuance of 
a Certificate of Occupancy for the first dwelling. 

12. An updated wastewater allocation request must be approved by the Town Manager. 

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the preliminary subdivision with the conditions listed above. 
 

 
Planning Board Recommendation:    
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1) Aerial Map 
2) Existing and Proposed Zoning Map 
3) Subdivision Findings of Fact  
4) Preliminary Subdivision Plat  
5) Application 
6) Neighborhood Meeting Materials (if available) 
7) Planning Board Motion Form 

 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

Page 114 of 178



Page 115 of 178



Page 116 of 178



Page 117 of 178



P
age 118 of 178



P
age 119 of 178



P
age 120 of 178



P
age 121 of 178



P
age 122 of 178



P
age 123 of 178



P
age 124 of 178



P
age 125 of 178



P
age 126 of 178



Page 127 of 178



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FROM STAFF PRESENTATION AT JUNE 22, 2015 

PLANNING BOARD MEETING:  
 

If approved, staff recommends the following conditions be applied to the approval of the 

preliminary subdivision plan:  

 

1. Following Board approvals, three copies of the final Preliminary Subdivision Plat 

meeting the requirements of the Conditions of Approval shall be submitted to Planning 

Department for final approval. 

2. The final plat and subsequent development of the site shall be consistent with the 

specifications of the approved Preliminary Subdivision Plat. Modifications may require 

additional approvals pursuant to Section 155.706 of the Unified Development Code.  

3. All development fees shall be paid prior to final plat recordation, except that Capacity 

fees shall be paid prior to issuance of building permits. 

4. A sidewalk shall be constructed along Shotwell Rd. along the entirety of the parcel, site, 

or development, including areas that will remain undeveloped or are reserved for future 

development. 

5. No buildings shall be constructed within 20’ of any riparian buffer, per UDC 

§155.502(D). A Class C buffer (or other Planning Dept. approved buffer) will be installed 

on the perimeter of the development, per Open-Space Subdivision development 

regulations.  

6. Five foot wide sidewalks shall be installed on both sides of all internal roads, including 

around the entirety of all cul-de-sacs, and shall be constructed or bonded prior to plat 

recordation for the associated phase. 

7. A homeowners’ association document shall be reviewed by staff and recorded prior to 

final plats. Such document shall assure responsibility for maintenance of all common 

areas/facilities (including perimeter buffer) and provide adequate means for funding to do 

so. 

8. Resource conservation areas as defined by Section 155.500 of the Unified Development 

Code (UDC) shall be identified on the final plats as being permanently set aside, and 

shall be protected in perpetuity by a binding legal instrument recorded with the deed 

which includes clear restriction on the use of the resource conservation area, as described 

in Section 155.500(F) of the UDC. 

9. The perimeter landscaping buffer along Shotwell Road must be installed prior to the 

issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for the first dwelling. 

10. All scheduled improvements to Shotwell Road must be constructed or bonded prior to the 

issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for the first dwelling. 

11. An updated wastewater allocation request must be approved by the Town Manager prior 

to plat issuance. 

<end conditions> 

Page 128 of 178



 

PPAB 2574608v1 

TOWN OF CLAYTON 

ZONING AMENDMENT 

CONSISTENCY AND REASONABLENESS STATEMENT 

RZ 2014-99, Magnolia Pointe rezoning 

 

The Town Council of the Town of Clayton hereby states: 

  
Section 1: The above referenced zoning amendment IS CONSISTENT with: 

 

The Town of Clayton’s Strategic Growth Plan, specifically:  

 Objective 2.1 – balance development/investment: old & new.  

 Objective 2.5 – more housing opportunities: beyond starter homes.  

 

The Town of Clayton’s Comprehensive Bicycle Plan: not applicable. 

Section 2: Based upon information presented at the public hearings and by the applicant, and 

based upon the recommendations and detailed information developed by staff and the Planning 

Board contained in the staff report, and considering the criteria applicable sections of the Unified 

Development Code of the Town of Clayton, the above referenced zoning amendment is 

reasonable and in the public interest. 

Insert additional specifics if necessary: 

 

 

 

 

Page 129 of 178



 Town of Clayton
Town Council

Preliminary Subdivision Plat Motion Sheet

After considering the competent, material, and substantial evidence presented, including the 
application and materials of record, I move to (PICK ONE):

Approve

Deny

Approve with Conditions

Preliminary Subdivision Plat Application Number PSD 2014-97 – Magnolia Pointe 

This motion is based on the following findings:

1. The preliminary subdivision plat IS consistent with the adopted plans and policies of 
the town. 

OR

The preliminary subdivision plat IS NOT consistent with the adopted plans and policies 
of the town. (State evidence supporting finding.)

***************************************************************************

2. The subdivision DOES meet all required specifications of the Town of Clayton Unified 
Development Code. 

OR

The subdivision DOES NOT meet all required specifications of the Town of Clayton 
Unified Development Code.  (State evidence supporting finding.)

****************************************************************************

3. The subdivision WILL NOT be detrimental to the use or orderly development of other 
properties in the surrounding area and WILL NOT violate the character of existing standards 
for development of properties in the surrounding area.

OR  

The subdivision WILL be detrimental to the use or orderly development of other 
properties in the surrounding area and WILL violate the character of existing standards for 
development of properties in the surrounding area. (State evidence supporting finding).

****************************************************************************

Page 130 of 178



4. The subdivision design WILL provide for the distribution of traffic in a manner that 
will avoid or mitigate congestion within the immediate area, WILL provide for the unified and 
orderly use of or extension of public infrastructure, and WILL NOT materially endanger the 
environment, public health, safety, or the general welfare.

OR

The subdivision design WILL NOT provide for the distribution of traffic in a manner 
that will avoid or mitigate congestion within the immediate area, WILL NOT provide for the 
unified and orderly use of or extension of public infrastructure, and WILL materially endanger 
the environment, public health, safety, or the general welfare. (State evidence supporting 
finding).

****************************************************************************

[If approved with conditions] The applicant meets this finding subject to the following 
conditions:

Page 131 of 178



Page 132 of 178



PUBLIC NOTICE

The Clayton Town Council has called a public hearing at 6:30 PM on Monday, 
August 3, 2015, at Town Hall, 111 East Second Street, on the question of 
annexing the following described contiguous area, requested by annexation 
petition 15-08-06-ANX  filed pursuant to G.S. 160A-31

The area proposed for annexation is described as the following:  Legal 
Description for FSC IV, LLC Property:  Lying and being in Wilders Township, 
Johnston County, North Carolina and being more particularly described as 
follows:

Beginning at an existing iron pipe on the bank of the Neuse River, said iron pipe 
being a common property corner between Ravens Ridge Phase 8A, plat book 80 
pages 394 and 395, and the now-or-formerly Mavis C. House property, deed 
book 705 page 629, and being the place and point of beginning;
Thence leaving the Neuse River with the southern Ravens Ridge 8A property line 
S 85 degrees 02 minutes 08 seconds E 356.46 feet to a point; Thence leaving the 
Ravens Ridge 8A property line S 85 degrees 02 minutes 08 seconds E 405.94 
feet to a point; Thence S 34 degrees 02 minutes 08 seconds E 323.95 feet to a 
point; Thence S 81 degrees 47 minutes 05 seconds W 40.83 feet to a point; 
Thence S 52 degrees14 minutes 32 seconds W 80.12 feet to a point; Thence N 06 
degrees 00 minutes 41 seconds W 40.88 feet to a point; Thence S 88 degrees 59 
minutes 55 seconds W 46.72 feet to a point; Thence S 24 degrees 05 minutes 06 
seconds W 51.06 feet to a point; Thence S 62 degrees 50 minutes 25 seconds W 
43.51 feet to a point; Thence N 34 degrees 14 minutes 24 seconds W 49.91 feet 
to a point; Thence N 72 degrees 04 minutes 07 seconds W 33.13 feet to a point; 
Thence S 04 degrees 35 minutes 09 seconds E 93.32 feet to a point; Thence S 74 
degrees 27 minutes 59 seconds W 64.57 feet to a point; Thence S 02 degrees 05 
minutes 39 seconds E 39.07 feet to a point; Thence N 86 degrees 51 minutes 53 
seconds W 157.36 feet to a point; Thence N 60 degrees 44 minutes 52 seconds 
W 114.98 feet to a point; Thence S 84 degrees 20 minutes 40 seconds W 91.31 
feet to a point; Thence N 35 degrees 27 minutes 43 seconds W 36.47 feet to a 
point; Thence N 76 degrees 01 minutes 49 seconds W 42.54 feet to a point; 
Thence S 78 degrees 44 minutes 39 seconds W 58.58 feet to a point; Thence S 
37 degrees 08 minutes 33 seconds W 53.70 feet to a point; Thence S 55 degrees 
57 minutes 54 seconds W 45.62 feet to a point; Thence S 71 degrees 06 minutes 
09 seconds W 39.42 feet to a point; Thence S 67 degrees 08 minutes 24 seconds 
W 55.35 feet to a point on the Neuse River; Thence with the Neuse River N 03 
degrees 54 minutes 53 seconds E 188.56 feet to a point; Thence N 03 degrees 
13 minutes 38 seconds E 95.87 feet to a point; Thence N 02 degrees 08 minutes 
13 seconds W 112.48 feet to a point; Thence N 00 degrees 24 minutes 57 
seconds W 135.91 feet to the place and point of beginning and containing 8.20 
acres more or less.

Page 133 of 178



This is an open meeting and the public is invited to attend.

Kimberly A. Moffett, CMC
Town Clerk
Town of Clayton
919-553-5002 ext. 5004
________________________________
Clayton News-Star

Please advertise on the following date:

July 22, 2015

Affidavit of publication required.
 

Page 134 of 178



Page 135 of 178



Page 136 of 178



Page 137 of 178



Page 138 of 178



!
!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!
!

!!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC 911
Board

Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal
responsibility for the information represented here.

-Annexation Map

Produced by: TOC Planning

Applicant(s): FSC IV LLC
Property Owner(s): FSC IV LLC
Parcel Number(s) 16I03028G
File Number(s): 15-08-06 ANX RWAC Raven's Ridge
8C-2 House Tract

Legend

!

!

!

!

Clayton Town Limits
Area to be Annexed
Parcels

May 27, 2015

1 inch = 200 feet

W WEBBER LN E WEBBER LN

R-E Zoning

R-E Zoning

R-8 Zoning

R-8 Zoning

R-10 Zoning

R-10 Zoning

HARDAWAY PT

SLOAN DR

Area to be Annexed
8.20 Acres

Page 139 of 178



Ordinance #2015-08-03 
ANNEXATION PETITION 15-08-06-ANX 
RWAC Raven’s Ridge 8C-2 
Parcel  16I03028G 
Owner:  FSC IV, LLC 
Contiguous; 8.20 acres 

AN ORDINANCE TO EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF 
THE TOWN OF CLAYTON, NORTH CAROLINA 

WHEREAS, the Town of Clayton has been petitioned under G.S. 160A-31 to 
annex the area described below; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Clayton has by resolution directed the Town Clerk to 
investigate the sufficiency of the petition; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Clerk has certified the sufficiency of the petition and a 
public hearing on the question of this annexation was held at Town Hall at 6:30 
PM on August 3, 2015, after due notice by publication on July 22, 2015; and  

WHEREAS, the Town of Clayton finds that the petition meets the requirements of 
G.S. 160A-31; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of Clayton, North 
Carolina that: 

Section 1.  By virtue of the authority granted by G.S. 160A-31, the following 
Page 1 of 4 

Page 140 of 178



described territory is hereby annexed and made part of the Town of Clayton as 
of August 3, 2015: 

Beginning at an existing iron pipe on the bank of the Neuse River, said iron pipe 
being a common property corner between Ravens Ridge Phase 8A, plat book 80 
pages 394 and 395, and the now-or-formerly Mavis C. House property, deed 
book 705 page 629, and being the place and point of beginning; 
Thence leaving the Neuse River with the southern Ravens Ridge 8A property line 
S 85 degrees 02 minutes 08 seconds E 356.46 feet to a point; Thence leaving the 
Ravens Ridge 8A property line S 85 degrees 02 minutes 08 seconds E 405.94 
feet to a point; Thence S 34 degrees 02 minutes 08 seconds E 323.95 feet to a 
point; Thence S 81 degrees 47 minutes 05 seconds W 40.83 feet to a point; 
Thence S 52 degrees14 minutes 32 seconds W 80.12 feet to a point; Thence N 06 
degrees 00 minutes 41 seconds W 40.88 feet to a point; Thence S 88 degrees 59 
minutes 55 seconds W 46.72 feet to a point; Thence S 24 degrees 05 minutes 06 
seconds W 51.06 feet to a point; Thence S 62 degrees 50 minutes 25 seconds W 
43.51 feet to a point; Thence N 34 degrees 14 minutes 24 seconds W 49.91 feet 
to a point; Thence N 72 degrees 04 minutes 07 seconds W 33.13 feet to a point; 
Thence S 04 degrees 35 minutes 09 seconds E 93.32 feet to a point; Thence S 74 
degrees 27 minutes 59 seconds W 64.57 feet to a point; Thence S 02 degrees 05 
minutes 39 seconds E 39.07 feet to a point; Thence N 86 degrees 51 minutes 53 
seconds W 157.36 feet to a point; Thence N 60 degrees 44 minutes 52 seconds 
W 114.98 feet to a point; Thence S 84 degrees 20 minutes 40 seconds W 91.31 
feet to a point; Thence N 35 degrees 27 minutes 43 seconds W 36.47 feet to a 
point; Thence N 76 degrees 01 minutes 49 seconds W 42.54 feet to a point; 
Thence S 78 degrees 44 minutes 39 seconds W 58.58 feet to a point; Thence S 
37 degrees 08 minutes 33 seconds W 53.70 feet to a point; Thence S 55 degrees 
57 minutes 54 seconds W 45.62 feet to a point; Thence S 71 degrees 06 minutes 
09 seconds W 39.42 feet to a point; Thence S 67 degrees 08 minutes 24 seconds 
W 55.35 feet to a point on the Neuse River; Thence with the Neuse River N 03 
degrees 54 minutes 53 seconds E 188.56 feet to a point; Thence N 03 degrees 
13 minutes 38 seconds E 95.87 feet to a point; Thence N 02 degrees 08 minutes 
13 seconds W 112.48 feet to a point; Thence N 00 degrees 24 minutes 57 
seconds W 135.91 feet to the place and point of beginning and containing 8.20 
acres more or less. 

Section 2. Upon and after July 20, 2015, the above-described territory and its 
citizens and property shall be subject to all debts, laws, ordinances and 
regulations in force in the Town of Clayton and shall be entitled to the same 
privileges and benefits as other parts of the Town of Clayton.  Said territory shall 
be subject to municipal taxes according to G.S. 160A-58.10. 

Page 2 of 4 

Page 141 of 178



Section 3. The Mayor of the Town of Clayton shall cause to be recorded in the 
office of the Register of Deeds of Johnston County, and in the office of the 
Secretary of State at Raleigh, North Carolina, an accurate map of the annexed 
territory, described in Section 1 above, together with a duly certified copy of this 
ordinance.  Such a map shall also be delivered to the County Board of Elections, 
as required by G.S. 163-288.1. 

Duly adopted this 3rd day of August 2015, while in regular session. 

_____________________________________ 
Jody L. McLeod, 

ATTEST: Mayor 

________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Kimberly A. Moffett, CMC Katherine Ross, 
Town Clerk  Town Attorney 

Page 3 of 4 

Page 142 of 178



NORTH CAROLINA 
JOHNSTON COUNTY 

This _____ day of _________________, 2015, personally appeared before me 

Kimberly A. Moffett, Clerk of the Town of Clayton, who, being duly sworn by me, 

says that she knows the common seal of the Town of Clayton and is acquainted 

with Jody L. McLeod, who is the Mayor and presiding member of said municipal 

corporation; and that she saw the said Mayor sign the foregoing instrument and 

saw the said common seal of said municipal corporation affixed to said 

instrument by said Mayor, and that she, the said Kimberly A. Moffett, signed her 

name in attestation of said instrument in the presence of said Mayor. 

Witness my hand and notarial seal, this the day and year first above 

written. 

______________________________________________ 
Notary Public - Signature 

(SEAL) ______________________________________________ 
Notary Public – Printed Name 

Commission Expires: _________________________ 

County of Commission:  _____________________ 

Page 4 of 4 

Page 143 of 178



Page 144 of 178



Resolution 2015-36
Amended

ANNEXATION PETITION 14-111-01-ANX
Parkview (Donald C Adams & City Road LLC)
Portion of Parcel 05030069 & 05030071
Owners:  City Road LLC & Donald C Adams
Contiguous; 3.55 acres & 25.33 acres

TOWN OF CLAYTON
RESOLUTION FIXING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON QUESTION

OF ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO G. S.160A-31

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the contiguous area described 
herein has been received; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council has by resolution directed the Town Clerk to 
investigate the sufficiency of the petition; and

WHEREAS, certification by the Town Clerk as to the sufficiency of the petition 
has been made;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Town Council of the Town of 
Clayton, North Carolina that:

Section 1.  A public hearing on the question of annexation of the contiguous area 
described herein will be held at Town Hall at 6:30 PM on Monday, August 17, 
2015.

Section 2.  Lying and being in Clayton Township, Johnston County, North 
Carolina and being more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at a point on the western r-o-w of City Road (N.C.S.R. 1709), said point 
being a common property corner with the now-or-formerly Janet E. Daniel 
Property, deed book 1603 page 9, and the now-or-formerly City Road, LLC 
property, deed book 4557 page 814, and being the place and point of beginning;
Thence with the western r-o-w of City Road S 13°21'31"W 427 .62 feet to a point;
Thence with leaving the western r-o-w of City Road N50°30'49"W 623.75 feet to a 
point; Thence N80°14'57"E  57.23 feet to a point; Thence N80°14'57"E 173.33 
feet to a point; Thence S86°48'56"E 353.52 feet to the place and point of 
beginning and containing 2.95 acres more or less.

Lying and being in Clayton Township, Johnston County, North Carolina and 
being more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at a common property corner between the now-or-formerly  City 
Road, LLC property, deed book 4557 page 814, the now or formerly Allen Lester 

Page 145 of 178



Mims, Jr. property, deed book 1141 page 108, and the now-or-formerly Donald 
C. Adams property, plat book 81 page 126, said point being the place and point 
of beginning; Thence with the City Road, LLC/Mims property line N80°15'52"E 
295.68 feet to a point; Thence S43°05'30"W 294.72 feet to a point in the City 
Road, LLC/Adams property line; Thence with the common City Road, LLC/Adams 
property line N28°35'54"W  188.18 feet to the place and point of beginning and 
containing 0.60 acres more or less.

Lying and being in Clayton Township, Johnston County, North Carolina and 
being more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at a common property corner between the now-or-formerly  City 
Road, LLC property, deed book 4557 page 814, the now or formerly Allen Lester 
Mims, Jr. property, deed book 1141 page 108, and the now-or-formerly Donald 
C. Adams property, plat book 81 page 126, said point being the place and point 
of beginning; Thence with the City Road, LLC/Adams property line S28°35'54"E 
188.18 feet to a point; Thence S43°05'30"W 1640.69 feet to a point; Thence 
N36°58'23"W 371.90 feet to a point; Thence N48°38'26"E 358.45 feet to a point; 
Thence N36°35'41"W 350.25 feet to a point; Thence N04°39'32"E 139.39 feet to a 
point; Thence Nl3°3 l '37"W 230.32 feet to a point; Thence Nl0°28'46"W 128.70 
feet to a point; Thence N04°33'25"E 187.32 feet to a point; Thence S84°07'58"E 
1251.86 feet to the place and point of beginning and containing 25.33 acres 
more or less.

Section 3.  Notice of the public hearing shall be published once in the Clayton 
News-Star, a newspaper having general circulation in the Town of Clayton, at 
least ten days prior to the date of the public hearing.

Duly adopted this 3rd day of August 2015 while in regular session.

_______________________________________
ATTEST: Jody L. McLeod, 

Mayor

__________________________________
Kimberly A. Moffett, CMC 
Town Clerk

Page 146 of 178



Page 147 of 178



Page 1 of 15
PPAB 2673018v4

INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

THIS INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made this 
_____ day of _________________ 2015 (the “Effective Date”), by and between EVERLAND-LEE, LLC, a 
North Carolina Limited Liability Corporation (“Developer”), and the TOWN OF CLAYTON, a municipal 
corporation existing under the laws of the State of North Carolina (the “Town”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Developer currently owns, is under contract or option to purchase, or plans to acquire 
one or more tracts of land comprising 136.95 acres, more or less, within the jurisdiction of the Town, all as 
more particularly described on the attached Exhibit A (collectively, the “Property”);

WHEREAS, Developer desires to develop the Property for residential and/or commercial purposes; 
however, the Property currently is not served with municipal sewer lines and facilities;

WHEREAS, the Town is planning to make certain sewer improvements and extensions to the Sam’s 
Branch Sewer Line in the Town of Clayton, which improvements and extensions would provide the Property 
the ability to connect to municipal sewer services and permit the development of the Property for 
Developer’s intended use(s);

WHEREAS, the Town is authorized under Chapter 51 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances to enter 
into a reimbursement agreement with Developer to allow Developer to contribute to the cost to complete the 
sewer line extension and to receive reimbursement from the Town for such contribution as other properties 
connect to the sewer line; 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Chapter 51 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances, the Town will use a 
portion of fees collected for connections to the sewer line to reimburse Developer for the amount of its 
contribution that is used to construct the sewer line to standards that exceed the requirements to provide 
sewer service to the Property;

WHEREAS, the extension of the sewer line will offer numerous benefits to the Town, including 
providing for the expeditious extension of sewer service to areas currently not served, permitting the 
systematic extension of municipal improvements, expanding the Town’s tax-base, providing public and 
private amenities to the Town’s citizens and improving the general quality of life in the Town;

WHEREAS, after conducting a public hearing and approving, by duly enacted ordinance, the parties 
now desire to enter into, and the Town Council has ratified, this Agreement to provide for reimbursing 
Developer for its contributions to the funding of the sewer line extension;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained in this 
Agreement, the benefits that will accrue to both parties from the construction of the sewer line and other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the parties agree as 
follows:

ARTICLE 1

GENERAL

Section 1.1 Definitions. Whenever used in this Agreement, the following terms shall 
have the definitions indicated as set forth in this Section.

Page 148 of 178



Page 2 of 15
PPAB 2673018v4

(a) “Developer” shall mean Everland-Lee, LLC, a North Carolina Limited Liability 
Corporation, and its officers, employees, successors, assigns and successors in title.

(b) “Laws” shall mean all laws, ordinances, resolutions, regulations, comprehensive 
plans, land development regulations, policies and rules adopted by the Town, the State of North 
Carolina, the United States of America and any other governmental authority or body with 
jurisdiction over the Property or the construction of the Sewer Line.

(c) “Property” shall mean one or more tracts of land comprising 136.95 acres, more 
or less, within the jurisdiction of the Town, currently owned by Developer, subject to a contract or 
option to purchase for the benefit of Developer, or to be acquired by Developer, which land is 
more particularly described on the attached Exhibit A.

(d) “Property Segment” shall mean the Segment of the Sewer Line located on the 
Property.

(e) “Sewer Line” shall mean the gravity sewer line and appurtenant facilities 
contemplated by this Agreement, together with all valves, fittings, service connections, service 
lines, shutoffs, meter boxes, sewage pumping stations, force-mains, gravity sewer mains, 
manholes and laterals. The Sewer Line is comprised of one or more Segments, all of which are 
described on the attached Exhibit B. 

(f) “Segment” shall mean a segment of the Sewer Line.

(g) “Town” shall mean the Town of Clayton, a municipal corporation existing under 
the laws of the State of North Carolina, and its officers, employees, successors, assigns and 
successors in title.

Section 1.2 Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date 
and shall expire Forty-nine (49) years after the Property is physically connected to the Sewer Line (the 
“Term”).

ARTICLE 2

INFRASTRUCTURE AND CAPACITY ALLOCATIONS

Section 2.1 Planning, Design and Approvals for Sewer Line. The Town shall be solely 
responsible for preparing and obtaining all plans, designs and construction drawings for the Sewer Line and 
for obtaining all required permits and approvals from all governmental agencies with jurisdiction over the 
Sewer Line.

Section 2.2 Construction of Sewer Line. The Town shall be solely responsible for 
bidding, award of bid and construction management of the Sewer Line. The cost of the Property Segment 
(the “Project Cost”) shall be the amount of the lowest, responsible, responsive bid received by the Town for 
the Segment (the “Bid”). The estimated Project Cost is itemized in the attached Exhibit C.

Section 2.3 Developer’s Contribution to Project Cost. In accordance with 
Chapter 51 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances, subject to the reimbursement provisions of Article 3, 
Developer agrees to contribute to the Town $585,728 of the Project Cost. The contribution will be 
made in the following payments:  Twenty Percent (20%) of total amount shall be paid by August 4, 

Page 149 of 178



Page 3 of 15
PPAB 2673018v4

2015, Forty Percent (40%) of total amount shall be paid by September 4, 2015, and the remaining 
Forty Percent (40%) shall be paid by November 4, 2015

Section 2.4 Contingent Upon Other Segments. Only the Property Segment is located on 
the Property. Other Segment(s) are located on property not owned by Developer or that do not connect to the 
Property or other property owned by Developer. Each Segment is subject to a separate Infrastructure 
Reimbursement Agreement with the developer of such Segment, which contains the same material terms as 
this Agreement (each a “Segment Agreement”). Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, 
the continued effectiveness of this Agreement and the obligations of the Town and Developer under this 
Agreement shall be contingent upon the continued effectiveness of the Segment Agreement(s) for the 
Segment(s) upstream from the Property Segment. In accordance with the foregoing, if one or both of the 
other Segment Agreements for the Segments upstream from the Property Segment expires or terminates, for 
any reason, prior to the “Acceptance Date” under the applicable Segment Agreement or this Agreement, this 
Agreement shall terminate automatically and shall be deemed null and void. 

Section 2.5 Rights of Way. Developer shall convey and dedicate to the Town, at no 
cost to the Town, temporary construction easements and permanent easements over any property in which 
Developer owns an interest for the purpose of constructing, operating and maintaining the Sewer Line. 

ARTICLE 3

REIMBURSEMENT AND ACCOUNTING OF COSTS

Section 3.1 Developer Reimbursement.

(a) Upon completion of the Sewer Line, Developer shall be eligible for 
reimbursement by the Town for the portion of the Project Cost incurred by the Town for installing 
a Property Segment larger than needed to serve the Property (the “Reimbursement Amount”). The 
Reimbursement Amount is estimated in the attached Exhibit D. Only the Project Cost shall be 
used in the calculations for the Reimbursement Amount, and no interest on the Contribution shall 
be eligible for reimbursement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Developer shall not be eligible for 
reimbursement for sewer acreage fees Developer is required to pay to connect the Property to the 
Sewer Line; provided, Developer’s sewer acreage fees shall be based on the Town’s standard 
sewer acreage fee schedule and shall not include the sewer line surcharge otherwise charged in 
the Sam’s Branch Sewer Basin. Developer acknowledges the Town’s sewer acreage fee schedule 
is subject to change at any time by the Town.

(b) The Reimbursement Amount shall be paid to Developer by the Town only from 
sewer acreage fees collected by the Town from development on property (other than the Property) 
that connects to the Property Segment directly or through lines tributary to direct connections to 
the Property Segment. Such sewer acreage fees shall be paid by the Town to Developer within 
thirty (30) days after the end of each quarter from the sewer acreage fees collected by the Town 
during such quarter. Developer shall not be entitled to any sewer line surcharges (applicable in the 
Sam’s Branch Sewer Basin) paid by third parties for other properties connecting to the Property 
Segment. In no event shall Developer be entitled to reimbursement from the payment of sewer 
acreage fees collected by the Town for connecting development to sewer lines not directly 
connected to the Property Segment or through lines tributary to direct connections to the Property 
Segment. Developer’s right to reimbursement under this Agreement shall be based solely on the 
connection of new development to the Property Segment in accordance with this Error! 
Reference source not found., and Developer shall have no right to reimbursement or 
compensation from the Town as a result of increases or decreases in flow through the Property 

Page 150 of 178



Page 4 of 15
PPAB 2673018v4

Segment for any reason, regardless of source. In no event shall the Reimbursement Amount 
exceed the Contribution.

ARTICLE 4

SEWER CAPACITY ALLOCATION

Section 4.1 Sewer Capacity Allocation.

(a) As of the Acceptance Date, the Town shall be deemed to reserve an average daily 
flow sewer capacity allocation for all of the Property in the amount of 63,107 gallons per day for 
residential or commercial purposes (the “Allocation”). Developer may apportion the Allocation 
among subdivided parcels of the Property, subject to the Town’s paramount right to approve, 
restrict, limit or otherwise regulate the development of such parcels as provided in Section 4.1(d) 
and elsewhere in this Agreement. If the Property requires any additional sewer capacity allocation 
beyond the Allocation, the Town shall assign additional sewer allocation, if available, for the 
then-current phase of development of the Property at the later of the Town Council approval of a 
site plan for all or a portion of the Property or the payment of all applicable development fees 
prior to commencement of construction for the then-current phase of development, including 
capacity fees, acreage fees and nutrient offset fees. 

(b) Subject to the timely performance by Developer of its obligations under this 
Agreement and/or other events beyond the Town’s reasonable control and the sewer capacity 
reservation made in Section 4.1(a), the Town shall make every reasonable effort to provide sewer 
service to the Property on a schedule appropriate to fulfill the requirements of the Project 
Schedule. In the event that the Developer’s scheduled work is completed in advance of 
completion and availability of the Sewer Line then the Developer and the Town will cooperate to 
provide alternative service for necessary time period.  If a “Pump and Haul” solution becomes 
necessary the Town shall pay for installation of a temporary holding tank at a mutually acceptable 
location.  The Town will contribute collected sewer service receipts collected from the Property 
towards the cost of the Pump and Haul operation and Developer shall pay the additional cost, if 
any, for the Pump and Haul operation.  Town shall manage the Pump and Haul operation and 
make monthly invoices to Developer for their cost share of the operation, as applicable.

(c) The amount of sewer treatment capacity assigned for the Property shall be the 
average sewer treatment capacity requirement for the Property as determined by the Town. Upon 
Developer’s build-out of the Property, the sewer treatment capacity assigned to the Property shall 
be deemed exhausted, regardless of actual flow that originates from the Property.

(d) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement and the Town’s 
allocation of sewer treatment capacity to the Property under this Agreement, nothing in this 
Agreement shall be construed as an approval of any development or use of all or a portion of the 
Property, and any development of all or a portion of the Property shall at all times remain subject 
to all requirements set forth in the Town’s Unified Development Ordinance and all other adopted 
ordinances, policies, or schedules of the Town of Clayton.

ARTICLE 5

MISCELLANEOUS

Page 151 of 178



Page 5 of 15
PPAB 2673018v4

Section 5.1 Notices. To be effective, any notice or other communication 
required, permitted, or contemplated by this Agreement must be in writing and must be sent by 
email (return-receipt requested), certified mail (return-receipt requested), overnight delivery service 
(with proof of delivery), or commercial courier (with proof of delivery) to the following addresses. 
A party may change its address(es) by giving five (5) days prior notice to the other party of such 
change. Notice shall be deemed delivered or received upon the earliest to occur of (a) receipt of the 
transmission if sent by email; (b) three (3) days after the postmark if sent by certified mail; (c) the 
next day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday if sent by overnight delivery service, or (d) 
upon receipt if delivered by commercial courier.

If to Town:

R. Steven Biggs
Town Manager
231 East Second Street
Clayton NC 27520
stevebiggs@townofclaytonnc.org 

With a Required Copy to:

Jeff Bandini
Parker Poe
301 Fayetteville St., Suite 1400
Raleigh, NC 27601
jeffbandini@parkerpoe.com

If to Developer: With a Required Copy to:

Section 5.2 Force Majeure. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this 
Agreement, neither party shall be liable to the other for any failure to perform under this Agreement as a 
result of a force majeure, including acts of governmental authorities, embargoes, fire, flood, hurricanes, 
tornadoes, explosions, acts of God or a public enemy, strikes, labor disputes, vandalism, civil riots, or acts of 
terrorism; provided, such party (i) shall notify the other party promptly if the performance of any duty or 
obligation required under this Agreement will be delayed or prevented by a force majeure; and (ii) shall 
diligently and in good faith act to the extent within its power to remedy the circumstances affecting its 
performance.

Section 5.3 Development Standards. Nothing in this Agreement shall abridge, 
terminate or modify any adopted ordinances, policies and schedules of the Town of Clayton, all of which are 
ratified, adopted and incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth in this Agreement. If a state or 
federal law is changed after the Effective Date of this Agreement and the change prevents or precludes 
compliance with one or more provisions of this Agreement, the Town may modify the affected provision(s) 
of this Agreement upon making a finding, after public notice and conducting a public hearing, that the 
change in state or federal law has a fundamental effect on this Agreement; provided, the Town shall use its 
best efforts to comply with the sewer treatment allocations and reimbursement obligations set forth in this 
Agreement, so long as such compliance does not violate such applicable state or federal law.

Section 5.4 Entire Agreement. Except with respect to prior approvals and Laws 
applicable to the Sewer Line, this Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with 
respect to the matters covered herein and supersedes any prior negotiations, understandings, or agreements in 
their entirety with respect to the matters contemplated hereby. 

Section 5.5 No Waiver of Governmental Authority or Discretion. Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be construed to bind, estop, direct, limit, or impair the future regulatory, legislative, or 
governmental discretion of the Clayton Town Council in a manner not permitted by law. The Town shall 
incur no liability to Developer for any losses or damages it may incur as a result of or in connection with the 
Town’s exercise or performance of its regulatory, legislative, or governmental powers or functions, or any 

Page 152 of 178



Page 6 of 15
PPAB 2673018v4

judicial determination regarding such exercise or performance, provided the Town shall be contractually 
bound by the terms of this Agreement, including the sewer allocation in Section 4.1.

Section 5.6 Authority. The Town and Developer each warrants and represents to the 
other that it has full right and authority to enter into this Agreement, that this Agreement has been presented 
to and approved by each party’s governing board after proper notice and hearing and that the person signing 
on behalf of each party is authorized to do so.

Section 5.7 No Partnership. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to 
make the Town a partner with Developer or render either party liable for the debts or obligations of the other.

Section 5.8 Choice of Law and Forum. This Agreement shall be deemed made in 
Johnston County, North Carolina. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 
the laws of North Carolina. Except for any cause of action for which a federal court has exclusive 
jurisdiction, the exclusive forum and venue for all actions arising out of this Agreement shall be the North 
Carolina General Court of Justice in Johnston County. Such actions shall neither be commenced in nor 
removed to federal court. This Section shall not apply to subsequent actions to enforce a judgment entered in 
actions heard pursuant to this Section.

Section 5.9 No Third-Party Rights Created. This Agreement is intended for the benefit 
of the Town and Developer and their successors and assigns and not for any other person, and no such 
persons shall enjoy any right, benefit, or entitlement under this Agreement.

Section 5.10 Amendment. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, this 
Agreement may not be amended or terminated except by written instrument signed by both parties.

Section 5.11 Preambles. The preamble and recitals to this Agreement are part of the 
agreement between the parties and shall be binding upon the parties in accordance with their terms.

Section 5.12 Enforceability. The enforceability and validity of this Agreement, in whole 
or in part, shall not be affected by the unenforceability or invalidity of any particular provision of this 
Agreement.

Section 5.13 Principles of Interpretation and Definitions. In this Agreement, unless the 
context requires otherwise: (1) the singular includes the plural, and the plural includes the singular; the 
pronouns “it” and “its” include the masculine and feminine; references to statutes or regulations include all 
statutory and regulatory provisions consolidating, amending, or replacing the statute or regulation; references 
to contracts and agreements shall be deemed to include all amendments thereto; and the words “include,” 
“includes,” and “including” are to be interpreted as if they were followed by either the phrase “without 
limitation” or “but not limited to;” (2) references to a “Section” or “section” shall mean a section of this 
Agreement; (3) “Agreement,” whether or not capitalized, refers to this instrument; (4) titles of sections, 
paragraphs and articles are for convenience only and shall not be construed to affect the meaning of this 
Agreement; (5) “Duties” includes obligations; (6) the word “person” includes natural persons, firms, 
companies, associations, partnerships, trusts, corporations, governmental agencies and units and other legal 
entities; (7) the word “shall” is mandatory; (8) the word “day” means calendar day; (9) attorneys for all 
parties have participated in the drafting of this document, and no future interpretation shall favor or disfavor 
one party over another on account of authorship; and (10) all exhibits, attachments, or documents attached to 
this Agreement or referred to in this Agreement are incorporated by reference into this Agreement as if fully 
set forth herein.

Section 5.14 Successors and Assigns. All of the provisions of this Agreement shall be 
binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective permitted successors and 

Page 153 of 178



Page 7 of 15
PPAB 2673018v4

assigns. Developer may not assign its rights or obligations under this Agreement without the express written 
approval of the Town, which approval may be withheld in the Town’s sole discretion.

Page 154 of 178



Page 8 of 15
PPAB 2673018v4

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town and Developer have caused this Agreement to be duly 
executed and sealed pursuant to proper authority as of the day and year first above written.

DEVELOPER:

___________________, a __________________
 

By:

Print Name:

Title:

Page 155 of 178



Page 9 of 15
PPAB 2673018v4

TOWN OF CLAYTON, NORTH CAROLINA

By:___________________________________
 Jody L. McLeod, Mayor

ATTEST:

By:______________________________ [AFFIX MUNICIPAL SEAL]
 _______________________, Town Clerk

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner
Required by the Local Government Fiscal Control Act.

______________________________________
Finance Officer

Approved as to Form.

______________________________________
Town Attorney

Page 156 of 178



Page 10 of 15
PPAB 2673018v4

EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

Page 157 of 178



Page 11 of 15
PPAB 2673018v4

Page 158 of 178



Page 12 of 15
PPAB 2673018v4

EXHIBIT B

DESCRIPTION OF SEWER LINE

Page 159 of 178



Page 13 of 15
PPAB 2673018v4

Page 160 of 178



Page 14 of 15
PPAB 2673018v4

EXHIBIT C

ESTIMATED CONTRIBUTION

Creech Tract Developer Contribution= $585,728

Page 161 of 178



Page 15 of 15
PPAB 2673018v4

EXHIBIT D

ESTIMATED REIMBURSEMENT

Creech Tract Developer:  Reimbursement

Reimbursement on Project Capital Contribution= $105,869.99

Reimbursement for facility upsize=  $87,554.00

Total value of reimbursement= $193,423.99

Page 162 of 178



Page 1 of 16
PPAB 2673018v4

INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

THIS INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made this 
______ day of _____________, 2015 (the “Effective Date”), by and between City Road, LLC, a North 
Carolina Limited Liability Corporation; and Donald C. Adams  (collectively “Developer”), and the TOWN 
OF CLAYTON, a municipal corporation existing under the laws of the State of North Carolina (the 
“Town”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Developer currently owns, is under contract or option to purchase, or plans to acquire 
one or more tracts of land comprising 83.1 acres, more or less, within the jurisdiction of the Town, all as 
more particularly described on the attached Exhibit A (collectively, the “Property”);

WHEREAS, Developer desires to develop the Property for residential and/or commercial purposes; 
however, the Property currently is not served with municipal sewer lines and facilities;

WHEREAS, the Town is planning to make certain sewer improvements and extensions to the Sam’s 
Branch Sewer Line in the Town of Clayton, which improvements and extensions would provide the Property 
the ability to connect to municipal sewer services and permit the development of the Property for 
Developer’s intended use(s);

WHEREAS, the Town is authorized under Chapter 51 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances to enter 
into a reimbursement agreement with Developer to allow Developer to contribute to the cost to complete the 
sewer line extension and to receive reimbursement from the Town for such contribution as other properties 
connect to the sewer line; 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Chapter 51 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances, the Town will use a 
portion of fees collected for connections to the sewer line to reimburse Developer for the amount of its 
contribution that is used to construct the sewer line to standards that exceed the requirements to provide 
sewer service to the Property;

WHEREAS, the extension of the sewer line will offer numerous benefits to the Town, including 
providing for the expeditious extension of sewer service to areas currently not served, permitting the 
systematic extension of municipal improvements, expanding the Town’s tax-base, providing public and 
private amenities to the Town’s citizens and improving the general quality of life in the Town;

WHEREAS, after conducting a public hearing and approving, by duly enacted ordinance, the parties 
now desire to enter into, and the Town Council has ratified, this Agreement to provide for reimbursing 
Developer for its contributions to the funding of the sewer line extension;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained in this 
Agreement, the benefits that will accrue to both parties from the construction of the sewer line and other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the parties agree as 
follows:

ARTICLE 1

GENERAL

Section 1.1 Definitions. Whenever used in this Agreement, the following terms shall 
have the definitions indicated as set forth in this Section.

Page 163 of 178



Page 2 of 16
PPAB 2673018v4

(a) “Developer” shall mean City Road LLC, Donald C. Adams, and its officers, 
employees, successors, assigns and successors in title.

(b) “Laws” shall mean all laws, ordinances, resolutions, regulations, comprehensive 
plans, land development regulations, policies and rules adopted by the Town, the State of North 
Carolina, the United States of America and any other governmental authority or body with 
jurisdiction over the Property or the construction of the Sewer Line.

(c) “Property” shall mean one or more tracts of land comprising 83.1 acres, more or 
less, within the jurisdiction of the Town, currently owned by Developer, subject to a contract or 
option to purchase for the benefit of Developer, or to be acquired by Developer, which land is 
more particularly described on the attached Exhibit A.

(d) “Property Segment” shall mean the Segment of the Sewer Line located on the 
Property.

(e) “Sewer Line” shall mean the gravity sewer line and appurtenant facilities 
contemplated by this Agreement, together with all valves, fittings, service connections, service 
lines, shutoffs, meter boxes, sewage pumping stations, force-mains, gravity sewer mains, 
manholes and laterals. The Sewer Line is comprised of one or more Segments, all of which are 
described on the attached Exhibit B. 

(f) “Segment” shall mean a segment of the Sewer Line.

(g) “Town” shall mean the Town of Clayton, a municipal corporation existing under 
the laws of the State of North Carolina, and its officers, employees, successors, assigns and 
successors in title.

Section 1.2 Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date 
and shall expire forty-nine (49) years after the Property is physically connected to the Sewer Line (the 
“Term”).

ARTICLE 2

INFRASTRUCTURE AND CAPACITY ALLOCATIONS

Section 2.1 Planning, Design and Approvals for Sewer Line. The Town shall be solely 
responsible for preparing and obtaining all plans, designs and construction drawings for the Sewer Line and 
for obtaining all required permits and approvals from all governmental agencies with jurisdiction over the 
Sewer Line.

Section 2.2 Construction of Sewer Line. The Town shall be solely responsible for 
bidding, award of bid and construction management of the Sewer Line. The cost of the Property Segment 
(the “Project Cost”) shall be the amount of the lowest, responsible, responsive bid received by the Town for 
the Segment (the “Bid”). The estimated Project Cost is itemized in the attached Exhibit C.

Section 2.3 Developer’s Contribution to Project Cost. In accordance with Chapter 51 of 
the Town’s Code of Ordinances, subject to the reimbursement provisions of Article 3, Developer agrees to 
contribute to the Town $355,414 of the Project Cost. The contribution will be made in the following 
payments:  Twenty Percent (20%) of total amount shall be paid by August 4, 2015, Forty Percent (40%) of 

Page 164 of 178



Page 3 of 16
PPAB 2673018v4

total amount shall be paid by September 4, 2015, and the remaining Forty Percent (40%) shall be paid by 
November 4, 2015.

Section 2.4 Contingent Upon Other Segments. Only the Property Segment is located on 
the Property. Other Segment(s) are located on property not owned by Developer or that do not connect to the 
Property or other property owned by Developer. Each Segment is subject to a separate Infrastructure 
Reimbursement Agreement with the developer of such Segment, which contains the same material terms as 
this Agreement (each a “Segment Agreement”). Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, 
the continued effectiveness of this Agreement and the obligations of the Town and Developer under this 
Agreement shall be contingent upon the continued effectiveness of the Segment Agreement(s) for the 
Segment(s) upstream from the Property Segment. In accordance with the foregoing, if one or both of the 
other Segment Agreements for the Segments upstream from the Property Segment expires or terminates, for 
any reason, prior to the “Acceptance Date” under the applicable Segment Agreement or this Agreement, this 
Agreement shall terminate automatically and shall be deemed null and void. 

Section 2.5 Rights of Way. Developer shall convey and dedicate to the Town, at no 
cost to the Town, temporary construction easements and permanent easements over any property in which 
Developer owns an interest for the purpose of constructing, operating and maintaining the Sewer Line. 

ARTICLE 3

REIMBURSEMENT AND ACCOUNTING OF COSTS

Section 3.1 Developer Reimbursement.

(a) Upon completion of the Sewer Line, Developer shall be eligible for 
reimbursement by the Town for the portion of the Project Cost incurred by the Town for installing 
a Property Segment larger than needed to serve the Property (the “Reimbursement Amount”). The 
Reimbursement Amount is estimated in the attached Exhibit D. Only the Project Cost shall be 
used in the calculations for the Reimbursement Amount, and no interest on the Contribution shall 
be eligible for reimbursement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Developer shall not be eligible for 
reimbursement for sewer acreage fees Developer is required to pay to connect the Property to the 
Sewer Line; provided, Developer’s sewer acreage fees shall be based on the Town’s standard 
sewer acreage fee schedule and shall not include the sewer line surcharge otherwise charged in 
the Sam’s Branch Sewer Basin. Developer acknowledges the Town’s sewer acreage fee schedule 
is subject to change at any time by the Town.

(b) The Reimbursement Amount shall be paid to Developer by the Town only from 
sewer acreage fees collected by the Town from development on property (other than the Property) 
that connects to the Property Segment directly or through lines tributary to direct connections to 
the Property Segment. Such sewer acreage fees shall be paid by the Town to Developer within 
thirty (30) days after the end of each quarter from the sewer acreage fees collected by the Town 
during such quarter. Developer shall not be entitled to any sewer line surcharges (applicable in the 
Sam’s Branch Sewer Basin) paid by third parties for other properties connecting to the Property 
Segment. In no event shall Developer be entitled to reimbursement from the payment of sewer 
acreage fees collected by the Town for connecting development to sewer lines not directly 
connected to the Property Segment or through lines tributary to direct connections to the Property 
Segment. Developer’s right to reimbursement under this Agreement shall be based solely on the 
connection of new development to the Property Segment in accordance with this Error! 
Reference source not found., and Developer shall have no right to reimbursement or 
compensation from the Town as a result of increases or decreases in flow through the Property 

Page 165 of 178



Page 4 of 16
PPAB 2673018v4

Segment for any reason, regardless of source. In no event shall the Reimbursement Amount 
exceed the Contribution.

ARTICLE 4

SEWER CAPACITY ALLOCATION

Section 4.1 Sewer Capacity Allocation.

(a) As of the Acceptance Date, the Town shall be deemed to reserve an average daily 
flow sewer capacity allocation for all of the Property in the amount of 82,500 gallons per day for 
residential or commercial purposes (the “Allocation”). Developer may apportion the Allocation 
among subdivided parcels of the Property, subject to the Town’s paramount right to approve, 
restrict, limit or otherwise regulate the development of such parcels as provided in Section 4.1(e) 
and elsewhere in this Agreement. If the Property requires any additional sewer capacity allocation 
beyond the Allocation, the Town shall assign additional sewer allocation, if available, for the 
then-current phase of development of the Property at the later of the Town Council approval of a 
site plan for all or a portion of the Property or the payment of all applicable development fees 
prior to commencement of construction for the then-current phase of development, including 
capacity fees, acreage fees and nutrient offset fees. 

(b) Subject to the timely performance by Developer of its obligations under this 
Agreement and/or other events beyond the Town’s reasonable control and the sewer capacity 
reservation made in Section 4.1(a), the Town shall make every reasonable effort to provide sewer 
service to the Property on a schedule appropriate to fulfill the requirements of the Project 
Schedule. In the event that the Developer’s scheduled work is completed in advance of 
completion and availability of the Sewer Line then the Developer and the Town will cooperate to 
provide alternative service for necessary time period.  If a “Pump and Haul” solution becomes 
necessary the Town shall pay for installation of a temporary holding tank at a mutually acceptable 
location.  The Town will contribute collected sewer service receipts from the Parkview project 
towards the cost of the Pump and Haul operation and Developer shall pay the additional cost, if 
any, for the Pump and Haul operation.  Town shall manage the Pump and Haul operation and 
make monthly invoices to Developer for their cost share of the operation, as applicable.

(c) Except with respect to the Allocation that has already been assigned to 
Developer, after completion of the Sewer Line, the Town shall assign its available sewer 
allocation on a first-come (payment of fees), first-served basis; provided, the Town Council may 
otherwise reserve some portion of its available capacity for its own use or for a public purpose. 
The Town Public Works Department shall maintain a public list of the assigned flows and the 
Town’s available allocation of sewer treatment capacity. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
Town agrees not to grant any sewer treatment capacity to other properties that will connect to the 
Property Segment until after completion of the Sewer Line.

(d) The amount of sewer treatment capacity assigned for the Property shall be the 
average sewer treatment capacity requirement for the Property as determined by the Town. Upon 
Developer’s build-out of the Property, the sewer treatment capacity assigned to the Property shall 
be deemed exhausted, regardless of actual flow that originates from the Property.

(e) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement and the Town’s 
allocation of sewer treatment capacity to the Property under this Agreement, nothing in this 
Agreement shall be construed as an approval of any development or use of all or a portion of the 
Property, and any development of all or a portion of the Property shall at all times remain subject 

Page 166 of 178



Page 5 of 16
PPAB 2673018v4

to all requirements set forth in the Town’s Unified Development Ordinance and all other adopted 
ordinances, policies, or schedules of the Town of Clayton.

ARTICLE 5

MISCELLANEOUS

Section 5.1 Notices. To be effective, any notice or other communication 
required, permitted, or contemplated by this Agreement must be in writing and must be sent by 
email (return-receipt requested), certified mail (return-receipt requested), overnight delivery service 
(with proof of delivery), or commercial courier (with proof of delivery) to the following addresses. 
A party may change its address(es) by giving five (5) days prior notice to the other party of such 
change. Notice shall be deemed delivered or received upon the earliest to occur of (a) receipt of the 
transmission if sent by email; (b) three (3) days after the postmark if sent by certified mail; (c) the 
next day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday if sent by overnight delivery service, or (d) 
upon receipt if delivered by commercial courier.

If to Town:

R. Steven Biggs
Town Manager
231 East Second Street
Clayton NC 27520
stevebiggs@townofclaytonnc.org 

With a Required Copy to:

Jeff Bandini
Parker Poe
301 Fayetteville St., Suite 1400
Raleigh, NC 27601
jeffbandini@parkerpoe.com

If to Developer: With a Required Copy to:

Section 5.2 Force Majeure. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this 
Agreement, neither party shall be liable to the other for any failure to perform under this Agreement as a 
result of a force majeure, including acts of governmental authorities, embargoes, fire, flood, hurricanes, 
tornadoes, explosions, acts of God or a public enemy, strikes, labor disputes, vandalism, civil riots, or acts of 
terrorism; provided, such party (i) shall notify the other party promptly if the performance of any duty or 
obligation required under this Agreement will be delayed or prevented by a force majeure; and (ii) shall 
diligently and in good faith act to the extent within its power to remedy the circumstances affecting its 
performance.

Section 5.3 Development Standards. Nothing in this Agreement shall abridge, 
terminate or modify any adopted ordinances, policies and schedules of the Town of Clayton, all of which are 
ratified, adopted and incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth in this Agreement. If a state or 
federal law is changed after the Effective Date of this Agreement and the change prevents or precludes 
compliance with one or more provisions of this Agreement, the Town may modify the affected provision(s) 
of this Agreement upon making a finding, after public notice and conducting a public hearing, that the 
change in state or federal law has a fundamental effect on this Agreement; provided, the Town shall use its 
best efforts to comply with the sewer treatment allocations and reimbursement obligations set forth in this 
Agreement, so long as such compliance does not violate such applicable state or federal law.

Section 5.4 Entire Agreement. Except with respect to prior approvals and Laws 
applicable to the Sewer Line, this Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with 

Page 167 of 178



Page 6 of 16
PPAB 2673018v4

respect to the matters covered herein and supersedes any prior negotiations, understandings, or agreements in 
their entirety with respect to the matters contemplated hereby. 

Section 5.5 No Waiver of Governmental Authority or Discretion. Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be construed to bind, estop, direct, limit, or impair the future regulatory, legislative, or 
governmental discretion of the Clayton Town Council in a manner not permitted by law. The Town shall 
incur no liability to Developer for any losses or damages it may incur as a result of or in connection with the 
Town’s exercise or performance of its regulatory, legislative, or governmental powers or functions, or any 
judicial determination regarding such exercise or performance, provided the Town shall be contractually 
bound by the terms of this Agreement, including the sewer allocation in Section 4.1.

Section 5.6 Authority. The Town and Developer each warrants and represents to the 
other that it has full right and authority to enter into this Agreement, that this Agreement has been presented 
to and approved by each party’s governing board after proper notice and hearing and that the person signing 
on behalf of each party is authorized to do so.

Section 5.7 No Partnership. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to 
make the Town a partner with Developer or render either party liable for the debts or obligations of the other.

Section 5.8 Choice of Law and Forum. This Agreement shall be deemed made in 
Johnston County, North Carolina. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 
the laws of North Carolina. Except for any cause of action for which a federal court has exclusive 
jurisdiction, the exclusive forum and venue for all actions arising out of this Agreement shall be the North 
Carolina General Court of Justice in Johnston County. Such actions shall neither be commenced in nor 
removed to federal court. This Section shall not apply to subsequent actions to enforce a judgment entered in 
actions heard pursuant to this Section.

Section 5.9 No Third-Party Rights Created. This Agreement is intended for the benefit 
of the Town and Developer and their successors and assigns and not for any other person, and no such 
persons shall enjoy any right, benefit, or entitlement under this Agreement.

Section 5.10 Amendment. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, this 
Agreement may not be amended or terminated except by written instrument signed by both parties.

Section 5.11 Preambles. The preamble and recitals to this Agreement are part of the 
agreement between the parties and shall be binding upon the parties in accordance with their terms.

Section 5.12 Enforceability. The enforceability and validity of this Agreement, in whole 
or in part, shall not be affected by the unenforceability or invalidity of any particular provision of this 
Agreement.

Section 5.13 Principles of Interpretation and Definitions. In this Agreement, unless the 
context requires otherwise: (1) the singular includes the plural, and the plural includes the singular; the 
pronouns “it” and “its” include the masculine and feminine; references to statutes or regulations include all 
statutory and regulatory provisions consolidating, amending, or replacing the statute or regulation; references 
to contracts and agreements shall be deemed to include all amendments thereto; and the words “include,” 
“includes,” and “including” are to be interpreted as if they were followed by either the phrase “without 
limitation” or “but not limited to;” (2) references to a “Section” or “section” shall mean a section of this 
Agreement; (3) “Agreement,” whether or not capitalized, refers to this instrument; (4) titles of sections, 
paragraphs and articles are for convenience only and shall not be construed to affect the meaning of this 
Agreement; (5) “Duties” includes obligations; (6) the word “person” includes natural persons, firms, 
companies, associations, partnerships, trusts, corporations, governmental agencies and units and other legal 

Page 168 of 178



Page 7 of 16
PPAB 2673018v4

entities; (7) the word “shall” is mandatory; (8) the word “day” means calendar day; (9) attorneys for all 
parties have participated in the drafting of this document, and no future interpretation shall favor or disfavor 
one party over another on account of authorship; and (10) all exhibits, attachments, or documents attached to 
this Agreement or referred to in this Agreement are incorporated by reference into this Agreement as if fully 
set forth herein.

Section 5.14 Successors and Assigns. All of the provisions of this Agreement shall be 
binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective permitted successors and 
assigns. Developer may not assign its rights or obligations under this Agreement without the express written 
approval of the Town, which approval may be withheld in the Town’s sole discretion.

Page 169 of 178



Page 8 of 16
PPAB 2673018v4

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town and Developer have caused this Agreement to be duly 
executed and sealed pursuant to proper authority as of the day and year first above written.

DEVELOPER:

___________________, a __________________
 

By:

Print Name:

Title:

Page 170 of 178



Page 9 of 16
PPAB 2673018v4

TOWN OF CLAYTON, NORTH CAROLINA

By:___________________________________
 Jody L. McLeod, Mayor

ATTEST:

By:______________________________ [AFFIX MUNICIPAL SEAL]
 _______________________, Town Clerk

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner
Required by the Local Government Fiscal Control Act.

______________________________________
Finance Officer

Approved as to Form.

______________________________________
Town Attorney

Page 171 of 178



Page 10 of 16
PPAB 2673018v4

EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

Page 172 of 178



Page 11 of 16
PPAB 2673018v4

Page 173 of 178



Page 12 of 16
PPAB 2673018v4

EXHIBIT B

DESCRIPTION OF SEWER LINE

Page 174 of 178



Page 13 of 16
PPAB 2673018v4

Page 175 of 178



Page 14 of 16
PPAB 2673018v4

EXHIBIT C

ESTIMATED CONTRIBUTION

Parkview Tract Developer Contribution= $355,414

Page 176 of 178



Page 15 of 16
PPAB 2673018v4

EXHIBIT D

ESTIMATED REIMBURSEMENT

Parkview Tract Developer Reimbursement

Reimbursement on Project Capital Contribution= $64,240.94

Reimbursement for facility upsize= $53,662.00

Total value of reimbursement= $117,902.94

Page 177 of 178



Page 16 of 16
PPAB 2673018v4

EXHIBIT E

PROJECT SCHEDULE

Page 178 of 178


	Agenda
	3. a. Cover - Draft Minutes - July 20, 2015 Closed Session - Pdf
	3. b. Cover - Vacancy Library Board.pdf
	3. b. Library Board Applicant.pdf
	3. c. Cover - Creekside Commons.pdf
	3. c. Creekside Commons Warranty and Dedication.pdf
	3. d. Cover - 2015-14- Squealin' on the Square.pdf
	3. d. 2015-14 Squealin on the Square - Action Item Report.pdf
	3. e. Cover - Amendments 15-08-06-ANX.pdf
	3. e. Amend Resolution 2015-27.docx
	3. e. Amend Resolution 2015-33.pdf
	3. e. Amend Cert of Sufficency Ravens Ridge.pdf
	3. e. Revised PublicNotice 15-08-06-ANX RWAC Ravens Ridge 8C2 House Tract.docx
	5. a. Cover - 15-18-01-RZ - Young Family.pdf
	5. a. Public Notice - 15-18-01-RZ.pdf
	5. a. Staff Report- 15-18-01-RZ - Young Family Tract .pdf
	5. a. Motion Form 15-08-01-RZ.docx
	5. a. Ordinance 15-18-01-RZ.pdf
	5. b. Cover - 15-19-01-RZ - Wiggins.pdf
	5. b. Public Notice -15-19-01-RZ.pdf
	5. b. Staff Report- 15-19-01-RZ - Wiggins Tract.pdf
	5. b. Motion Form - 15-19-01-RZ.docx
	5. b. Ordinance - 15-19-01-RZ.pdf
	5. c. Cover - PSD 2014-97.pdf
	5. c. Public Notice - PSD 2014-97.pdf
	5. c. Staff Report - Magnolia Pointe PSD2014-97.pdf
	5. c. Motion Form - PSD 2014-97.docx
	5. d. Cover - 15-08-06-ANX.pdf
	5. d. Revised PublicNotice - 15-08-06-ANX RWAC Ravens Ridge 8C.docx
	5. d. Staff Report - 15-08-06-ANX.pdf
	5. d. Ordinance - 15-08-06-ANX.pdf
	6. a. Cover  - Amend Resolution 2015-36.pdf
	6. a. Amend Resolution 2015-36.docx
	6. b. Cover - Sam's Branch Agreements.pdf
	6. b. Sam's Branch Sewer Outfall Infrastructure Agreement Creech Ver 3.0.doc
	6. b. Sam's Branch Sewer Outfall Infrastructure Agreement Parkview Ver 3.0.doc

